2006
e

] - T i

Nl i el

:
:
E
£
:
:

0
i
X
Z
<
0

e
o

/) 7
e

S
<
sl
%)
3
T
<
C
<
)
<

)
M







Fiffe Afsraws 200y
CHerewad Fegport LO06

sn?r Wmﬁ e oo
el - . (a4l
AL-ARAFAH ISLAMI BANK LIMITED

=qarz e HWgfaw FFifFe ez g S=1y FEEH

Y T ¢ 0L FerE*T q1/4 TFl-d000
CFIT 2 A303¢ -9, BEYH009, SCYoddb, DCLALLE




- )
1§ )/

Allah permitteth trading and forbideth usury
Sura Bakara-275
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QUR'ANIC VERSES ON INTEREST

Those who swallow Riba (usury) cannot rise
up save as he ariseth whom the devil hath
prostrated by (his) touch. That is because
they say: Trade is just like usury: whereas,
Allah permitteth trading and forbideth
usury: He unto whom and admonition from
his Lord cometh and (he) refraineth (in
obedience thereto). He shall keep (the
profits of) that which is past. And his affair
(hence-forth) is with Allah. As for him who
returneth (to Riba) such are rightful owners
of fire. They will abide therein. (2:275)

O, Ye who believe, observe duty to Allah,
and give up what remaineth (due to you)
from usury, if ye are (in truth) believers,
(2:278)



HADITH ON INTEREST

Abdullah Ibn. Masud (Allah be pleased with
him) said that: Allah’s Messenger (m '
peace be upon him) cursed the one why
accepted Interest and the one who paid it.

Jabir bin Abdullah (Allah be pleased with
him)said that: Allah’s Messenger (ma
peace be upon him) cursed the acceptor of
interest and its payer, and the one who
records it., and the witness; and he said :
They are all equal.

-Muslim

Abdullah bin Awfa (Allah be pleased with
him)narrated: Allah’s Messenger said,
convey the message of the Hell to those who
do business of money based on interest.
-Tabranee

Abdullah Ibn. Masud (Allah be pleased with
him) said that: Allah’s messenger (may be
pleased with him) said, there are 73 stages
of interest amongst which the lowest is o TTWT WHFIR T TPTOW (F3) atfa‘g?ﬁmﬁw

committing adulteration with one's own AR (Fg) FAwre! @ Fradrel Towd SHe
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J o o TFS wifer fam @R (d18) I FETE -
Abu Huraira (Allah be pleased with him) AR (313) FAwTSl, FRAETSl, AW HiEeTad
narrated that: Allah:s Messanger (may @F4F ¢ TR AIEE TR WA (A7)
peace be upon him) said : you should protect fAmaTes @32 FCeTRR, SR T AN AN |
yourself from 7 destructive issues amongst (e =13reF)
which the 3rd one is taking interest . o TS THEEZ W WG TeTH (A1g) a6 FraTEA-
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Page 101) 1

AND GREAT MEN ON INTEREST

Interest has been banned in the two books of
Hazrat Musa (A.), which are considered as
the scriptures of Jews. The 22nd line of
Exodus goes as saying, 'If you lend money
to a poor man, don’t become money lenders
and don’t realize interest from him.’

Similarly in 23rd line of ancient scripture of
the Jews entitled " Deuteronomy" states,
"You don’t lend money to your brother for
interest-i.e interest on money, interest on
foodstuff and interest on anything lent.’

Hebrewism is known as Musaic or Jewism.
Musaic laws or commands of Musa are the
basis of Hebrewism. Interest was totally
prohibited in Musaic law. This rule was
exclusively practiced by the Jews. In this
ideology, there are clear directions on
interest as other aspects of economics.

In Hinduism, usury business was restricted
within the "Baithayas’.

One Jew couldn’t take interest by lending
money from another. But, taking interest
was in practice by lending money to the
people of other religions.

Some writers quoted from the book,
"Talmud’ that the Hebrew prophets frobade
interest not only from Jews but from all.
(Eric Roll, A history of Economic Thought:
page 48)

Interest was prohibited from the beginning
of the Christianity to the advent of the
Reform Movement and from the Church
under pope in Rome to the division of other
Churches, Christ said. 'Lend hopping for
nothing again.” (Luke VI 35, Hanley: History
of Economic Thought 1964, Page 101).

D

ofnnual Keport 2006




11" Annual General Meeting

9% R et 7o (2 & @) @ Soifge waifs sfaseeg
@

oAnnual Report 2006




BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sponsor Director (Group - A)

Alhajj Md. Anowar Hossain
Chairman

Dr. Bahauddin Mohd. Yousuf
Vice Chairman

Alhajj AZ M Shamsul Alam
Alhajj Md. Harun-ar-Rashid Khan
Alhajj Ahmed Ali
Alhajj Nazmul Ahsan Khaled
Alhajj Abdul Malek Mollah
Alhajj Dr. D. M Amanul Haque
Alhajj Mohammad Haroon
Alhajj Md. Badsha Meah
Alhajj Hafez Md. Enayetullah
Alhajj Kazi Md. Mofizur Rahman
Alhajj Mir Ahmed Sowdagar
Alhajj Mohammad Yahya
Alhajj Badiur Rahman
Alhajj Mohammed Mahtabur Rahman
Alhajj Abdul Moktadir
Alhajj Kazi Abu Kauser
Alhajj Mohammed Fazlur Rahman
Alhajj Ahamedul Haque
Alhajj Abdus Samad

Shareholder Director (Group - B)
Engr. Kh. Mesbahuddin Ahmed
Alhajj Md. Seraj-ud-Dowla

Ex Officio Director
M. A. Samad Sheikh

Company Secretary
Md. Mofazzal Hossain
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Mob : 01713-014889

Moulana Abu SayecdMuhumimad

Member  Former Director Phone : 9551902 (0)
Omar Ali Islami Bishokosh Division _ 7548499 (R)
Islamic Foundation of '
: Mob : 01714-809557
Bangladesh, Dhaka-1000 ’ =
Mufti Muinul Islam Member  Head Mufti Phone : 8114980
Darul Ifta Wal Ershad 9127867 Ext-115.119
Al-Markajul Islami
Mob : 01199-155863
21/17 Babor Road, S
Mohammadpur, Dhaka-1207
Alhajj Md. Anowar Hossain Member  Chairman Phone : 9569354
Board of Director 8611978(R)
Al- Arafah Islami Bank Ltd
36, Dilkusha C/A
Dhaka-1000.
Alhajj A Z M Shamsul Alam Member  Chairman Phone : 7123255-7
Audit Committee Ext-129
Al- Arafah Islami Bank Ltd 7165844 (R)
36, Dilkusha C/A Mob : 01819-240128
Dhaka-1000.
Md. Abdur Rahim khan Secretary  Principal Officer Phone : 9565960
(Acting) Al- Arafah Islami Bank Ltd Mob : 019[4‘260401

36, Dilkusha C/A
Dhaka-1000.

* The Shariah Council is formed. vide Banglades

- Dated 6-12-1994

sh Bank letter of intent, BCD (P) 744 (ka) 2323




Executive Vice President
Syed Emdadul Hoque
Md. Anisur Rahman

Senior Vice President
A K M Fazlul Hoque

A N M Abdus Shahid
Md. Abdul Gofran

Md. Mofazzal Hossain
Muhd. Abdul Jalil Miah
A.S.M Monzurul Alam

Vice President

Md. Abdul Matin

M.H.A Mallic

Md. Emdadul Haque
Nazir Ahmed Chowdhury
Kh. Enayet Hossain

Md. Mijanur Rahman

M. Abul Quasem

M. Atiqur Rahman

Yakub Muhammad Faruque
Manir Ahmad

Md. Ishaque

Md. Abdul Khaleque
Nasrul Huq Chowdhury
A.W. Shamsuzzuha

Md. Momin Ullah

EXECUTIVES

Managing Director
M. A. Samad Sheikh

Assistant Vice President
Md. Mahtab Hossain

Md. Hadi Ferdous Ahmed
Md.Kamal Uddin Bhy

Mohd. Ziaul Karim Chowdhury
Md. Mosharraf Hossain Khan
Md. Ansar Uddin Ahmed
Md. Mahbube Rahman
Abdul Wadud Mallick

A N M Mofidul Islam

Md. Mominul Haque Bhuiyan
Mohammad Abdul Malek
Muhammed Nadim ACA

Md Abul Hossain

Md . Anisur Rahman Khan
Md. Shamsul Alam
Muhammad Abu Taher
Hasan Mahmud

Md. Mahbub Alam
Mohammad Yahya

Abdul Latif Mollah

Md. Monjur Hasan
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CORPORATE INFORMATION -2006
COMPANY SECRETARY
Md. Mofazzal Hossain

AUDITORS

Khan Wahab Shafique Rahaman & Co
Chartered Accountants
7 Rajuk Avenue Motijheel C/A(5" Floor)
Dhaka-1000, Phone 9551821,9551663,9565136

Saiful Samsul Alam & Co.

Chartered Accountants
15 Dilkusha C/A (6th floor)Dhaka -1000
Phones 9569256,7168779

Date of Registration 18 June 1995
Ist branch opening Motijheel Branch, Dhaka
Opening Ceremony 27 September, 1995
Authorized Capital 2500.00 Million
Paid up Capital 854.20 Million
Local partnership of capital 100%
Equity 1690.18 Million
Number of Branches 46
Deposit 16775.33 Million
Investment 17423.19 Million
Number of Manpower 912
Number of Shareholder 4487

REGISTERED OFFICE

36 Dilkusha Commercial Area

Dhaka-1000

Tel : PABX : 9568007, 9560198, 9567885, 9567819, 9569353
Telex : 632409 AIBMBJ, Fax : 880-2-9569351
Cable : JHEELARAFAH
SWIFT : ALARBDDH
Web : www.al-arafahbank.com

AL-ARAFAH ISLAMI BANK LIMITED
HEAD OFFICE, 36 Dilkusha C/A
DHAKA-1000
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NOTICE OF THE 12" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 12" Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Al-Arafah Islami
Bank Limited will be held on Sunday. the 13" May, 2007 at 10 A.M at *Trust Milonayaton’, 545,
Puratan Biman Bandar Sarak, Dhaka Cant., Dhaka. to transact the following business:

AGENDA

(1) To receive, consider and adopt the Directors’ Report, Audited Statements of Accounts with
Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended on 31° December 2006.

(2) To declare dividend in the form of Bonus Share for the year 2006.

(3) To appoint auditors of the company for the term until the next Annual General Meeting and to fix
their remuneration.

(4) To transact any other business with the permission of the chair.

All the hon’ble shareholders of the company are requested to make it convenient to attend the meeting
on time.

By order of the Board
Date, Dhaka "<)4V
11" March, 2007 (Md. Mofazzal Hossain)

SVP & Company Secretary
Phone: 7113694

NOTES:

(1) The Record Date of the company is Sunday, the 15th April 2007. Trading of the shares in the stock
exchanges will remain suspended on the Record Date. Members, whose names will appear in the
Register of Members at the close of business on the Record Date, will be eligible to attend the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) and vote there at.

(2) A member eligible to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) may appoint a proxy
to attend and vote on his/her behalf. Proxy Form duly stamped (Tk.8) must be submitted to the
Registered Office of the Company not later than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting:

(3) The Shareholders, who are interested to put questions, are requested to send those to Share
Department, 36, Dilkusha C/A, (7th floor), Dhaka-1000, before 7 (seven) days of the AGM;

 (4) Attendance of Members/Shareholders/Attorney/Proxy’s will be recorded up to 10.00 a.m. at the

entrance of the hall on the day of the meeting.

 Ofaneal Report 2006
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Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

All praise be to Almighty Allah, Lord of the Universe
and peace & blessings of Allah be upon the Prophet
Mohammad (SM) and his descendants &
companions.

Assalamu Alaikum Wa Rahmatullah.

Dear Shareholders,

The Board of Directors has the great pleasure in
welcoming you all to the 12th Annual General
Meeting and placing before you the Annual Report
along with the financial statement of the bank for the
year ended 31 December 2006.

Global Economy

The world economy has achieved a stable growth in
2006 led by a robust growth in the United States And
in most emerging market and developing countries,
especially China and India.

The September 2006 issue of the IMF World
Economic Outlook projected 5.1% global output
growth in 2006, 0.2% higher than 4.9% recorded in
2005.

The advanced economies as a group achieved a
growth by 3.1% which the other emerging market and
developing countries as a group achieved by 7.30%
in 2006.

Oil and other commodity prices continued at elevated
levels in the first eight month of 2006.The oil price
rose sharply above its pre Katrina Peak in early May
and again in early August to reach a new record high
of USD 76 per Barrel, supported by tight spare
capacity in global market both in production and
refining - against the background of buoyant GDP
growth. Security concern in the Middle East and
continued risks to production in some large producers
elsewhere notably Nigeria Non-fuel commodity
prices picked up strongly between January and July
2006 reaching its highest level in real terms since
1990- on surging metal prices.

Awnual Report 2006
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Looking forward in 2007, global economic growth is
expected to have only a modest deceleration at 4.9%
0.2% below compared 5.10% in 2006.

IMF projected amongst the advanced economic
expected to grow 1.30% in Germany, 2.30% in
France, 2.90% in the USA, 2.70% in ltaly, 3.00% in
Canada and 4.40%in newly industrialized Asia
economic.

Among the other emerging market and developing
countries, activity remains very strong with forecasts
in most countries and region: china is projected to
grow a high 10.00% in 2007, driven by strong
domestic demand and rapidly rising current account
balances South Asia’s (Bangladesh, India Maldives,
Nepal, Pakistan and Sri Lanka) growth rate is also
expected to be quite robust.

The global economic expansion has continued to be
supported by the favorable financial market
condition, characterized by unusually low risk
premiums, low financial volatility, long run profit
rates still remaining below average, and profit rate
spreads remaining close to historic lows.

A number of risks remain to the short and medium
term outlook, with the balance of risks slanted to the
downside.

The major downside risks are: high and volatile oil
prices, a tightening of financial market conditions,
rising global imbalances and an avian-flu pandemic.
The oil market is likely to be characterized by robust
consumption growth and production uncertainties.

National Economy

The Bangladesh economy grew by 6.7% in 2005-06,
the highest ever recorded since 1989-90. The growth
was stimulated mainly by the manufacturing sector,
which grew by 10.4%. the highest since 1997-98.
Some branches of the services sector and the
normalization of production in the agriculture sector
also contributed to the overall economic growth.

On the demand side, a sizeable increase in remittances
and exports made a significant contribution to the
growth of GDP. In 2005-06, domestic demand outpaced
domestic supply. The consumer price inflation during
the fiscal rose to 7.0%, (.56 percentage point above the
inflation rate in 2004-05. While food inflation increased
rapidly, higher oil price and the instability in the foreign
exchange market were also important factors behind the
higher inflation rate in 2005-06.
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In terms of US Dollar, the value of GDP in current
prices increased by 2.71% to US$ 62021 million in
2005-06 from US$S 60382 million in the preceding
year. Per capita GDP stood at US$447 in 2005-06
compared to US $441 in 2004-05, showing an
increase of 1.4%. Measured by the developments in
the CPI, the inflation rate was 7.0% in 2005-06
compared to 6.5 % in 2004-05. The increase in prices
as measured by GDP deflator was 5.2% in 2005-06
compared to 5.1% in 2004-05. The average
depreciation of Bangladesh Taka was 11.7% in 2005-
06 compared to 4.0% in 2004-05. The real wage
index increased by 6.6% in 2005-06 compared to
5.9% in 2004-05.

Structural change in the Economy

There has not been significant structural change in the
economy during the fiscal year. The share of
agriculture in the GDP fell from 22.3% 2004-05 to
21.8% in 2005-06, while that of services fell
marginally from 49.4% to 49.2% during the period.
Compensating for the declining shares of these two
sectors, the share of industry rose from 28.3% in 2004-
05 to 29.0% in 2005-06. Within the broad industrial
sector, the share of manufacturing in total GDP
increased from 16.5% to 17.1%. that of construction
rose from 9.1% to 9.2%, and that of power, gas and
water from 1.6% to 1.7% during the year.

Industry

Even though the share of the industrial sector in GDP
rose by a meagre 0.7% in 2005-06, it grew at a faster rate
during the year. In 2005-06, this sector registered a
growth of 9.56%, which is 1.28-percentage point higher
than the 8.28% growth recorded in 2004-05. Within
industry, the manufacturing sector’s growth was 10.45%,
2.26 percentage point higher than in the previous year,
primarily reflecting a higher growth of large and medium
scale industries sub sectors as well as the construction of
some new production facilities. The construction sub-
sector growth increased to 8.4% in 2005-06 from 8.3%
in the previous year, while the growth of small-scale
industry increased to 9.0% against 7.9%. On the other
hand, the growth of electricity, gas and water production
in 2005-06 fell to 7.7% from 8.9% in 2004-05.

Agriculture:

Following a deceleration of growth in 2004-05, the
gross agriculture production increased by 4.5% in 2005-
06 compared to 2.2% in 2004-05. Year-on-Year
agriculture production growth was about the same a:s_‘_-in__ .
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2003-04. However, the much-expected turnaround in
agriculture in 2005-06 was derailed by unfavorable
weather conditions, which occurred throughout the year.

In addition to weather related factors, increases in the
cost of inputs such as fertilizers, pesticides and high cost
of farm labour also hampered agriculture production in
2005-06. According to the latest estimate, actual
production of food grains in 2005-06 will be 28.2
million metric tons. 3.74 million metric tons short of the
target, compared to actual production of 26.6 million
metric tons in 2004-05. This means that crop production
in 2005-06 will increase by 6.0%, as against a decline of
4.1% in the previous year.

Services

The services sector grew by 6.5% in 2005-06
compared to 6.4% in 2004-05. The growth in the
services sector in 2005-06 reflects a relatively better
performance of the wholesale & retail trade, transport,
storage & communication, education, financial
intermediation. public administration & defence, hotel
& restaurants and real-estate. These sub-sectors grew
varying between 4% - 9%. However, the growth of
telephone and mobile sub-sector declined to 28.6% in
2005-06 from 31.78% in the previous year.

Investment and saving

The saving-investment gap, as a ratio of GDP, further
widened to 4.7% in 2005-06 from 4.4% in 2004-05
because of the lower relative increase in domestic
saving, which increased by only 0.2% as against an
increase of gross total investment by 0.5%. The
investment activities in the private sector during
2005-06 reflected higher investments in transport,
telecommunication and electricity and manufacturing
sub-sectors. Total national savings-GDP ratio
increased to 23.7% in 2005-06 from 23.4% in 2004-
(05 mainly due to higher inflow of remittances.

Monetary Development

The volume of Broad Money (M2) increased by Tk.295
billion or 20.5% in 2005-06 (up to May 2006). Time
deposit, component of M2, increased by 20.1%. M1, on
the other hand, increased by 21.7% in 2005-06, compared
to 17.2% in 2004-05. The M1 growth reflected a higher
increase in currency outside banks. Domestic credit
increased by 21.6% in FY06 as against 18.3% in FYO5.
Credit to the private sector increased by 17.1% in FY06,
compared to 17.9% in FY05. In 2005-06, private sector
credit was primarily channeled to industry and trade,
accounting for 71% of the total private sector loans. Net
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credit to government increased by 29.4% compared to a
growth of 18 8% in the previous year. Credit to other
public sector showed a significant growth of 54.5% in
FY06 compared to 21.3% in the previous year. In 2005-
06. the Bangladesh Bank adopted a conservative
monetary policy stance by increasing statutory liquidity
ratio from 16% to 18% and cash reserve requirement
from 4.5% to 5%. In 2005-06, the bank rate was
unchanged at 5%. However, these monetary measures
proved ineffective to contain the inflationary pressure. In
2005-06, the Taka depreciated by 8.5% compared to 4.0%
in 2004-05. Average deposit rate band remained between
3.62%-17.64% during the year, while average lending rate
band remained between 6.06% and12.82%.

Balance of payment

After two years of deficits, the current account
balance recorded a surplus of US$403 million in July
05- May 06. The year-on- year improvement in the
current account amounted to US$1133 million. The
improvement occurred in all current account heads
except the service account. The most important
improvement occurred in the current transfer, 99% of
which was in workers' remittances. The trade deficit
amounted to USS$ 2735 million in 2005-06. a year-on-
year improvement of US$375 million. The overall
balance of payments surplus declined to US$ 121
million in 2005-06 from US$ 292 million in 2004-05.

Exports

Total export earnings during 2005-06 amounted to
US$10100 million (16.3% of GDP) compared to US$
8655 million (14.3% of GDP) in 2004-05, indicating an
increase of 16.7% compared to 13.8% increase in 2004-
05. Exports increased largely due to higher demand in
both developed and developing countries. The share in
exports to the USA and EU countries marginally
declined to 80.5 % in 2005-06 from 81.4% in 2004-05.
Garments had the major share (39%), of the export
earning followed by knitwear (36%), frozen foods
(5%). jute goods (3%), leather (3%), home textile (2%),
chemical products (2%), and raw jute (1%).

Imports

Import payments during 2005-06 amounted to
USS$14800 million (23.9% of GDP) compared to USS
13147 million (21.8% of GDP) in 2004-05, showing an
increase of 12.6% in 2005-06 compared to 20.6%
increase in 2004-05. Major increases occurred in the
import of capital goods, consumer and intermediate
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goods, and imports by EPZs. The proportion of
consumer and intermediate goods in total imports,
increased to 46.8% in 2005-06 from 45.4% in 2004-05.
The composition of imports in 2005-06 by end-use was:
petroleum and petroleum products (12.6%). textile and
article thereof (12.1%), capital machinery (9.6%), iron,
steel & other base metals (7.0%), other food items
(6.5%), raw cotton (5.0%), chemicals (4.1%), yarn
(3.4%), food grains (3.0%) and fertilizer (2.9%).

Remittances

Remittances of Bangladeshi nationals working

abroad amounted to US$ 4806 million (7.7% of

GDP) in 2005-06 as against US$ 3848 million (6.4%
of GDP) in the preceding year, indicating an increase
of 24.9% in 2005-06 and 14.1% in 2004-05.

Foreign Assistance

In 2005-06, total foreign assistance amounted to
USS1704 million compared to US $1880 milliop in
2004- 05, indicating a decrease of 9.4% in contrast to
0.02% increase in the previous year. The assistance
included US $369 million as grants and US $1335
million as loans. This indicates a 14.3% decline in
grants and 7.9% decline in loans, compared to the
deceases of 4.6% and 1.5% respectively, in the previous
year. Total net external assistance declined by 16.6% in
2005-06 compared to a 6.1% increase in 2004-05,

Foreign Exchange Reserve

At the end of June 2006, Bangladesh Bank's foreign
exchange reserve increased by 18.9% or by USS 554
million to USS$ 3484 million (equivalent to 2.9 months
of imports) from US$ 2930 million (equivalent to 2.7
months of imports) at the end of June 2005.

Price Situation:

Consumer Price Index (CPl) increased by 7.14% in
2005-06 compared to 6.5% in 2004-05. Food items
accounted for 68% of the observed inflation in 2005-
06, caused mainly by lower agricultural supply in rural
markets. Export of agricultural commodities might
also have contributed to the shortage. There were also
significant upward adjustments in administered prices
during 2005-06. The implementation of minimum
wages might also have been an important factor. In
addition, the depreciation of the Taka also influenced
domestic prices. The annual point-to-point inflation
rate was 7.61% in 2005-06. 0.26 percentage points
above the 7.35% level in 2004-05.
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Public Finance:

Budget deficit in 2005-06 came down to 3.9% of
GDP from 4.4% in 2004-05. The decrease reflected
both lower government development expenditure and
higher tax revenue collection. Total public
expenditure was 14.7% of GDP in 2005-06, 0.3
percentage point lower than in 2004-05. This reflects
the reduction of development expenditure to 5.2% of
GDP from 5.5% in 2004-05. Total revenue collection
increased to 10.8% of GDP in 2005-06 from 10.6% in
2004-05. The budget deficit of 3.9% in 2005-06 was
met from external sources (1.9% of GDP), from
domestic banking sources (1.2% of GDP), and public
account transaction (0.8% of GDP).

Budget for 2006-07

The budget for 2006-07 envisages revenue receipts of
USS$ 7615 million and revenue expenditure of US$
6128 million. In the revised budget for 2005-06,
revenue receipts amounted to US$ 6370 million and
revenue expenditures US$ 5523 million. The revenue
surplus projected in the 2006-07 budgets is US$ 1487
million. The projected ADP for 2006-07 is USS 3768
million, a 17.6% increase over the revised
development budget of 2005-06. The overall budget
deficit projected in the 2006-07 budget is US$2284
million, which is 3.7% of GDP. The major sources of
revenue in 2006-07 are: VAT US$2135 million,
import duty USS$1375 million, taxes on income and
profit US$1232 million. and supplementary duty
US$1116 million, showing increases of 15.5%, 12.0
%, 18.8% and 17.1%, respectively, over the
preceding fiscal year.

The main heads of current expenditure are: interest
USS$ 1107 million, public services USS$ 1072 million,
education and technology US$1046 million, defence
services US$688 million, public order and safety
USS500 million, agriculture US$463 million, and
social security and welfare US$ 339 million, showing
changes of (-)1.6%. 51.0%, 8.6%, 4.6%, 5.0%, 12.1%
and 18.2%, respectively, over the past fiscal year.

In the development budget, the major allocations are
for local government and rural development US$815
million, transport and communication US$ 644
million, fuel and energy USS 617 million. education
and technology US$ 562 million, agriculture US$
378 million, health USS$ 344 million. and social
security and welfare USS$ 132 million, showing
changes of 1.8%, 19.3%, 10.6%, 34.4%. 47.5%.,
12.8% and (-) 12.3%, respectively.
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Banking Sector

Banking sector is a key factor for the development
of the national economy. It plays a very important
role in attaining a high GNP growth rate by
creating job opportunity, inviting & encouraging
investment. At present 4 government Banks, 5
specialized Banks, 30 private Banks and 10
foreign Banks are operating in the country. Our
banking sector has been operating with a total
deposit of Tk. 1554.70 Billion: loans and
advances Tk. 1308.20 Billion, 3.9 million
depositor/clients & 8.1 million investment clients.
Various steps of reforms have been taken to ensure
transparency, dynamicity & stronger role of banks
in the national development. Some of those are
mentioned bellow:

a) In order to enhance and widen the opportunity for
refinance scheme in small enterprise sector, BB has
created a Fund equivalent to 30 million US dollar
under "Small and Medium Enterprise Sector
Development Project” introduced by the
government with the financial assistance from
ADB. The refinance facility under the Fund will be
extended to banks/financial institutions who are
engaged in financing small enterprise sector. The
industrial unit/business enterprise that has
maximum fixed assets amounting to Taka one core
will be treated as small enterprise. Maximum 100
percent refinance facility will be provided to
banks/financial  institutions  against the
disbursement of loan amounting to Tk. 2,00 lakh to
Tk. 50.00 lakh given as term or working capital to a
single borrower in small enterprise sector.
Prevailing bank rate will be applicable as Profit rate
for refinance facility provided by BB and market
rate of Profit will be applicable to banks/financial
institutions at customer level.

b) Financial institutions whose capital and reserve
have risen to Tk. 25.00 core on / 31 December 2004
and did not yet issue [PO, they have to issue IPO of
/ minimum TK. 5 core before 31-December 2005. If
any institution would fail to issue IPO in due time,
Bangladesh Bank may instruct them to issue 1PO at
an increased amount. Further the time limit for
issues of IPO has been extended up to 30 June
2006.

¢) The rate of General Provision has been reduced
from 5 percent to 2 percent on the unclassified
amount for Housing Finance and Loans for
Professionals to setup business under Consumer
Financing Scheme.
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d) In order to strengthen credit discipline and bring
classification policy in line with international
standards, Bangladesh Bank from time to time has
revised its prudential norms for loan classification
and provisioning. As part of the process, a Master
Circular has been issued on 5 June 2006 in order
to enable the banks to have all existing instructions
on the subject at one place. This circular also
includes a few new instructions as well as new
formats for loan classification and provisioning.
More concentration has been given on Short-term
MicroCredit by enhancing its limit from Taka
10.000/- (ten thousand) to Taka 25,000/(twenty
five thousand). Banks having Offshore Banking
Unit (OBU) have been brought under the purview
of loan classification and provisioning with a view
to bringing transparency of OBU transactions of
EPZ (Export Processing Zone) enterprises and
thereby reporting to BRPD and CIB of Bangladesh
Bank for cross information purposes.

Economy of Bangladesh: Prospect in near future

Though the economy has been facing the challenges of
MFA phase out and persistent. fuel price hike, assuming
the continuation of prudent policies and structural
reforms, the near and medium term economic prospects of
Bangladesh appear favourable. In the Medium Term
Macroeconomic Framework (MTMF) of PRSP entitled
Unlocking the Potential : National, Strategy for
Accelerated Poverty Reduction' announced by the
Government in October 2005, real GDP growth has been
projected to increase to 6.8 percent in FYO07 sustaining at
7.00 percent in FY08 and FYO09, aided by improved
macroeconomic  stability and intrinsic resilience,
buoyancy in the overall agriculture sector growth, steady
growth in the manufacturing sector, SOE and NCB
reforms, and sustained improvement in the investment:
climate. To support the target growth rates invisaged in
the MTME, the gross domestic investment is projected to
increase from 25.50 percent of GDP in FY07 to 26.00
percent in FYO8 and FY09 Inflation is projected to
decline to 6.00 percent in FYO7 from 7.20 percent of
FY06 and then come down gradually to 4.5 percent
in FY09, with easing of domestic supply bottlenecks and
an appropriately tightened monetary policy stance
towards maintaining price stability, coupled with the
support of a prudent fiscal policy. In view of the growth
supportive policy stance with maintaining a target CPI
inflation. broad money (M2) is projected to grow at 13.0
percent in FYO7 and decline slightly at 12.5 percent in
FYO08 and FY09. The MTMF envisages that fiscal policy
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will be designed to maintain macroeconomic stability and
create room for private sector investment with a view to
supporting economic growth and MDGs, while protecting
fiscal sustainability. The revenue-GDP ratio is projected
to rise gradually from 11.3 percent in FY07 to 12.00
percent in FY(09 by systematic consolidation of tax
instruments and strengthening tax administration. For
attaining and maintaining the highest sustainable output
growth for rapid reduction of pervasive poverty. the
expenditure-GDP ratio is also projected to increase from
15.7 percent in FY07 to 16.4 percent in FY09.

Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd

Islamic ideology encourages us to succeed in
life here & hereafter. To achieve this success we
must follow the way dictated by the Holy Quran
and the path shown by Rasul (SM). With this

- goal in view Al Arafah Islami Bank Ltd was

established (registered) as a public limited
company on 18 June 1995. The inaugural
ceremony took place on 27 September 1995.
The authorised capital of the Bank is Tk.2500.00
million and the paid up capital Tk. 854.20
million. Some very renowned Islamic
personalities and pious businessmen of the
country are the sponsors of the bank. The total
paid up capital was invested locally.

The Bank is committed to contribute
significantly in the national economy. It has
made a positive contribution towards the socio
cconomic development of the country by
opening 46 branches on which 16 authorised
dealer (AD) throughout the country.

The equity of the bank stood at Tk.1690Million
Crore as on 31 December 2006, the manpower
was 912 and the number of shareholders was
4487.

Special Features of the Bank:

0 All activities of the bank are conducted
according to Islamic Shariah where profit is the
legal alternative to interest.

T The banks investment policy follows different
modes approved by Islamic Shariah based on
Quran & Sunnah.

00 The bank is committed towards establishing a
welfare oriented banking system, economic
upliftment of the low-income group of people,
create employment opportunities.
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O According to the needs and demands of the
society and the country as a whole the bank
invests money to different Halal business. The
bank participates in different activities aiming
at creating jobs, implementing development
projects taken by the government and
developing infrastructure.

O The bank is committed to establish an
economic system through social justice and
equal distribution of wealth. It is committed to
bring about changes in the underdeveloped
rural areas for ensuring balanced socio
economic development of the country through
micro credit program. According to Mudaraba
system, the depositors are the partners of the
investment income of the bank. During the
period under review, 70% of the investment
income has been distributed among the
Mudaraba depositors.

0 To render improved services to the clients
imbued with Islamic spirit of brotherhood,
peace and fraternity and by developing an
institutional cohesion.

(0 The bank is contributing to economic and
philanthropic activities side by side. Al Arafah
English Medium Madrasah and AIBL Library
are among mention worthy.

Activities of Shariah Council for the vear-2006

Shariah Council consists of 6 members
specialized in Fighul Muamalat
Commercial Law) as guideline given by Bangladesh
Bank to ensure whether all banking operations are
transacted in accordance with Islami Shariah i.e.
Qur'an, Sunnah, [jma and Iztihad.

Shariah Council has managed, by the grace of
Almighty Allah, to contribute a lot to run all the
business activities of the Bank according to Shariah
guidelines. Honorable members of the Shariah
Council sit in 7 meetings in the year 2006 to discuss
the matters placed before them by the Board and
management of the Bank to give directive and
suggestions in the field of Shariah principles.
Shariah Council advised everybody concerned to
comply Shariah requirements and render all out
effort to increase the standard of service rendered to
the clients.

Muraqibs of the Council have visited all the 41 branches
of the Bank over the year to observe the Shariah
compliance, give necessary instructions on the spot

(Islamic
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and submitted report to the Council. They have also
submitted corrective measures to rectify the laws in
implementing Shariah guidelines into the banking
operations and placed those to the Bank management
for further follow up. Besides, compensation
received from different branches, interest received
from correspondence bank of Nostro a/c and
Bangladesh bank clearing a/c as well as doubtful
income amounting to Tk.1,40,52,662 advised to set
aside from bank total halal income.

A library is established in the Shariah Council
Secretariat of Al-Arafah Islami Bank with about 500
books on Qur'an, Hadith, Figh, Islamic Economics
and Islami Banking. Honorable members of the
Council give Shariah guidelines to run the Bank's
operations taking necessary consultations and data
from those books doing exhaustive research and
study.

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Ltd. is a member bank of the
Central Shariah Board for Islamic Banks of
Bangladesh and the Chairman and Member
Secretary of the Shariah Council are also members of
the Central Shariah Board. This is a great honour for
our Bank as the Chairman and Member Secretary of
the Shariah Council are playing he roles of Vice
Chairman and Secretary-General respectively in
Central Shariah Board. The Shariah Council of the
Al-Arafah Islami Bank is playing an active role in
enhancing brotherhood and establishment of cordial
relationship amongst Islamic Banks of Bangladesh,
increasing cooperation and develop the standard of
Shariah principles on Islami Banking.

Position in the stock market

Bank's share sustained a steady strong position
throughout since its inception at Dhaka &
Chittagong Stock Exchange in 1998. In Dhaka
Stock Exchange the face value of taka 1000 of
our share was traded at taka 3099.50 highest in 2006.
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The market trend of our banks share in Dhaka
Stock Exchange between January 2006 to
December 2006 is stated below:

i

Month Highest | Lowest Closing
January 3099.50 3025.00 303050 |
| February 2910.00 2900.00 2001.00 |
March 2959.00 2920.00 295125
April 2967.00 204000 | 2947.25 i
May 2325.50 2305.00 231325 |
June 222500 2225.00 222500 |
July | 221000 2200.00 220075 |
August | 2380.00 2350.00 2364.75
September 2426.50 2400.00 2400.50
| October . 2301.25 2280.00 2295.00
| November | 241500 | 239700 | 241000 |
‘ December 2440.00 [ 2400.00 242025
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Share transaction in CDS

Advancement in information technology (IT) has
ushered a new era of growth and development in
the global business environment. Cental Depository
System (CDS), involving electronic book entry
record, register and transfer securities, is a significant
contribution of the IT revolution to the capital market
of the world. CDS (Central Depository System)
facilitates share transfer through the electronic book
entry instead of certificate issuance after the
transaction occurred in the stock exchanges. It
ensures quick share transfer. settlement and delivery.
Moreover, it aids to issue cash dividends or bonus
shares within a short period of time. Forged.
duplicated, re-issue and destruction of shares could be
avoided also. In this connection the bank signed an
agreement with Central Depository Bangladesh Limited
on 29th August 2005 for dematerialization of shares.

Agreement Signing Ceremony with Millenium Information
Solution Ltd. for On-line Banking
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Annual Repori 2006




( Report of the Board of Directors

wifS ATaDa

I T LS TSI AL WIS
389390 T | 9 fermE 2wob wifay ofe
HEFMA [0 (AF WATS FA@Z T AT W6
3uq4¢. 0o femw 51 | (Ut dodde &= fAfarme
afeE faes @2 Twon fafecme @@ TEce
39829.5s fferas Brat |

ST IR(E GILSFA (6 A ZCAZ 2DAR.8Y
e B wae T3 e dRo2. e B
Iod (T8 FA°E TEE AfFwe wiierEe vee.8q
fafem B @3 e R I=E@ 84b.oo
fafer B $aE *redl ab-.5a ©I9 (@ |
TEE
2009 AMAA WG T LT @AM A2F S55d
AL %EF TLFA @B TG doo @6 SR
S R Rem =9 TR, 7 @fEre e
JHALE S 2003 A 8.¢b (G BH (ATF
I A 2009 AT 7 AT be.ey F S
Tl F91 28 | 2009 AA 1T S B 8T TR
feedites @® 935 e DY FE @9 AR
ETAWT T Sv% TR @ R T I |
FE LFA AfTeiae T 000 AE ¢ @G
qo TF GIFW THre TW | w08 AMEA (N AW
T (WG FACAT A weE do8.29 *
BIFE | 2008 AME d¢.¢0% @FH (¥R 37 3=
Joo¢ AMA FILFA “fareifqe o« wiem va.9
IS B @32 200¢ ATEH 2% @R [ 3]
FE o0y A I “Afareifae Fem wrer™
v¢.83 FIfG 51 |

s w2l

Joo0¢ AR ) ferma ey Tuzs Afwfe
wefare i f3fen sfame ferem es8.2x fafagw
BIFl | WITAD) AT 9F2 N ANUFE Al
wzfarm fEfen «fema wifermrz vee.sy fufermw
Bl | @ CFLE &gfm R0ACR ST €850 T |

T sfieet

Y003 FAGE GUHT WA A& TF IS
fefas smomma fao@ite oy Faw e
b.00% 93 FE 5.00% 4 FEAY A2 | w08
AA ALIFE (6 A9 Al f2re do8.24
@I B @92 00¢ AE @@ doo.cy &I
BIl | TGS I Sl WIfSrER vo.08 (@FID
B | 9y fer™a j00¢ ST FgEE TEER
figel wee feren 2.09% W wEfs IwA
0.945% @ WIS |

Annual ﬂcpu{ 2006

Progressive Analysis

At the end of current year, the number of depositors
stood at 243273 and the amount of deposit has
accumulated to Tk. 16775.33 million. The total
numbers of investors are 13213 and total investment
extended to them was a sum of taka 17423.19
million.

The bank has earned Tk2172.48 million and incurred
an expense of Tk.1202.71 million in the current year.
At the end of the vear the profit before tax has stood
Tk. 855.47 million, which is 78.97% more than
Tk.478.00 million pre-tax income of the last year.

Capital

The Bank Company Act 1991 which amended in
March 2003 includes a provision of raising the
capital to a new level of Tk. 100 crore for the
commercial banks within March 2005. In
compliance with the new provision, the bank has
raised its capital from Tk. 41.58 crore in the year
2002 to Tk. 85.56 crore in 2003 by issuing a right
share against each of the existing shares in the year
2003 and declared 16% bonus dividend from the
profit of the year 2003.The bank again declared
15.50% bonus dividend from the profit 2004. As a
result, the paid up capital of the bank stood at
Tk.67.79 crore as at 31st December 2005.

Bank declared 26.00% Bonus dividend for the year
2005. As a result the paid up capital of the Bank
stood at Taka 85.42 Crore as at 31st December 2006.

Reserve Fund

The total balance of the reserve fund stood at Tk
835.94 million in the current year against Tk. 542.22
million compared to previous year 2005. In this
fund, the bank experienced a growth rate of 54.18%.

Capital Adequacy

The Bangladesh Bank has fixed the ratio of capital
adequacy against Risk-Weighted Assets at 9.00% in
place of 8% in the month of September 2002. In
2002, the amount of total Captail of the bank was
41.57 Crore taka, which stood at Tk.104.27 Crore in
the year 2004 and Taka 130.56 Crore in the year
2005. This year it stood at takal83.04 Crore. At 31
December 2006, the capital adequacy ratio of the
bank is 10.71% against 12.17% at the same period
of 2004.
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Total Assets

Deposit

The total deposit of the bank was Tk. 16775.33
million at 3 1st December 2006, of which bank
deposit was 611.72 million taka and general
deposit was 16163.61 million taka. At the
same time in the last year, the amount of total
deposits was 11643.66 million taka. In this
area the growth rate is 44.07%.
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At the end of the year 2006, the amount of
investment of the bank was Tk.17423.19 million in
comparison to Tk.11474.41 million of the last year
2005. The amount of investment has increased
5948.78 million taka within this period, which is
around 5184%.
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Grameen & Small Investment Scheme

An investment product “Grameen and Small
Investment” is in operation. The objective of this
project is to introduce Shariah based banking system
in rural and village area, creating employment
through financing to low income group, build up
savings attitude, improvement of living standard of
rural low income mass people, creating opportunity
to carry out Islamic lifestyle by way of alleviating
poverty and at the same time to make other
financially established by investing in small
investment projects. Initially this scheme was
introduced in three branches of AIBL i.e. Gallai,
Comilla Ruposhpur Srimongol and Campanigong
comilla. There is a plan to expand this project
gradually in other rural branches.

Within the scope of Grameen and Small Investment
scheme, investment has been made in the following
sectors :

1 Fisheries

2 Poultry Rearing

3. Cattle Rearing

4. Goat Rearing

5. Beef Fattening

6.  Poultry Firm

7. Processing of Muree

8.  Processing of sweets

9.  Stationery business

10. Vegetables business

11. Tailoring business

12.  Cultivation of Betle leaf

13. Work of Bamboo and Cane

14. Cultivation of Pineapple

15. Cultivation of Lemon

16. Processing of Crockeries

17. Purchasing of Rickshaw

18. Small business i.e. Paddy. Rice, Grocery.
19. Medicine shop and Shoe Stores.
20. Library business.

clanual Keport 2006

SI | Description Male | Female | Total
1 | Number of Group 47 69 116

2 | Number of Project 65 25 90

3 | Number of Member 314 147 511
4 | Savings of the Members| -- - 14.31
5 | Investment Amount -- - |188.30
6 | Rate of Recovery 100% | 100% |100%
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Foreign Trade

At the year of 2006, the bank experienced
satisfactory growth in the foreign trade. At the end of
2005, the total amount of foreign trade (export,
import and Remittance) was 18020.10 million taka;
which has increased at 60.18% to reach 28865.00
million taka in 2006. The total export of the bank
was 4932.90 million taka in 2005, which has
increased at 85.34% growth rate to reach 9142.70
million taka in 2006, whereas the national growth
was 85.34% during the same period. Similarly the
amount of import has increased from 12631.60
million taka of 2005 to 18821.40 million taka in
2006, experiencing a growth rate of 49.80%. Last
year the amount of remittence through the bank was
455.60 million taka, which grows to 900.90 million
taka in the current year.

Income

Investment income

The total investment of the bank was Tk.17423.09
million at 31st December of 2006. The total
income generated from this investment is
Tk. 1701.40 million which is 78.32% of the total
income. At the corresponding period of 2005, this
income was Tk. 1118.38 million. It indicates an
increasing growth rate of 52.14%.

Income from other than investment

The bank has earned Tk. 471.19 million from other
sources than investment like commission income,
exchange income, locker rent etc. in the current year
which is 21.68% of the total income. The Bank
earned Tk. 334.35 million from the same source in
the corresponding period of the last year, which
indicates 40.90% growth rate.

Expenditure
Profit paid to depositors

The bank has paid the depositors 819.71 million
taka, which is 70% of the investment income and
68.16% of the total expenditure of the year 2006.
The amount of this expenditure was 550.79 million
taka in the last year. In this purpose the expenditure
has increased 268.92 million taka or by 48.82 percent
compared to previous year.
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Financial product and survices

The bank has introduced a number of financial
products and services since its inception. The Major
Products and services are as follows :

. Instalment based turm deposit scheme.

. Monthly Profit based turm deposit scheme.

. Monthly Hajj deposit scheme.

. One time Hajj deposit scheme,

h = W =

. Lakhapati deposit scheme.

. Millioniare deposit scheme.
. Kotipoti deposit scheme.

. Dobule benifit scheme.

O 00 ~J

. Special savings (pension) scheme

10. Pensoniare deposit scheme.

11. Cash Wagfa Deposit Scheme.

12. Al-Arafah Savings Bond.

13. Marriage Deposit and Investment Scheme.

Administrative and other expenses

The administrative and other expenses have
increased by 8.29% in 2006, in comparison to that of
2005.The administrative and other expenses were
TK.353.68 Million in the last year and it amounts to
Tk. 382.99 Million in the current year which is
31.84% of the total expenditure.

Operating Profit
The Bank has earned Tk 969.77 million as operating

profit during the year. In 2005 it was Tk.548.20
million. The growh rate is 76.90%

Dividend

The bank has been paying dividends in every year

from 1998 when it was established as a public

limited company. The bank paid dividend at the
rate of 15% in 1998, 12% in 1999, 12% in
2000,7.5% in 2001 and 20% in 2002.Bank
declared bonus dividend at the rate of 16%.

15.50%, 26.00% & 35.00 % to its shareholders in the
year 2003, 2004, 2005 & 2006 respectively.
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Board and Committee Meeting

During this year 11 regular and emergency Board
Meeting have been held. Besides 20 meetings for
Executive Committee and 21 meeting of Audit
Committee of the Board. have been held during the
year.

Audit and Inspection

A total number of 12 employees including 1 Assistant
Vice President and 11 other Executives and Officers
have been working at the Audit and Inspection
department under the direct supervision of the
Managing Director. The department conducted internal
audit and inspection of 46 branches of the bank during
the year. The number of branches including head office
inspected by the Bangladesh Bank is 30.

Web Site

To present the overall picture of the bank to the
Depositors, Shareholders, Investment Clients and
Well wishers in home and abroad more transparently
and to adopt the development of the Information
Technology of 21st century bank designed a web site
for its own .The address of this site is www.al-
arafahbank.com

Staff Welfare Project

The Bank always kept a careful eye on the
economic security and benefit of its staffs
& officers. The Bank
contributory provident fund, a social

operates a

security & benevolent fund and a gratuity
fund for its employees. Till now a total of
taka | Core has been paid from the fund to
the families of late officers & staffs of the
bank.

Human Resource

The bank has recruited experienced new manpower
to coordinate its extended operation. The total
manpower employed in the bank including
Managing Director is 771 at 31st December 2005;
which was 912 at the end of the last year.
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Manpower position as on 31 December 2006

Designation Number
Managing Director .
Executive Vice President 2
Senior Vice President 6
Vice President 15
Assistant Vice President 21
Senior Principal Officer 37
Principal Officer 74
Senior Officer 66
Officer 225
Probationary Officer 41
Junior Officer 155
Assistant Officer 197
MCG 72
Tea Boy I
Total 912

Training & Motivation

Training and Motivation are utmost important to
bring about positive change in the outlook of the
manpower and to increase efficiency. Sets of
trained and efficient workforce are indispensable
for any commercial bank and they are the
fundamental strength of the bank.

Well trained and highly motivated personnel are a
prerequisite for running Islami Bank in a
traditional society like Bangladesh. Keeping this
view in mind training programmes on banking
and motivational programmes are being
implemented in 2006.

We have trained a total number of 361 trainees
through 11 training courses consisting of 46
working days in2006. In these training programs
special guest from Bangladesh Bank, BIBM, and
many other government and private Bank and
financial institutions have directed the classes,
besides Banks own speakers. As a general member
of Bangladesh Institute of Bank Management
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(BIBM)

training from that institution on different courses.

70 officers and executives have got

At the same time, some other 20 officers and
executives of the Bank have been trained in
several training institutes including Bangladesh
Bank Training Academy and others. Since every
branch and head office have arranged regular
program on Dars-e Quran and Dars-e- Hadith. The
total manpower of the Bank, clients and well-
wishers are being trained. This training and
motivational activities are ultimately resulting in
team spirit increasing efficiency sense of
discipline and the revival of moral values among
the employees officers and executives as well.

Inshallah, in the coming years the overall
programs of the training will get an increased

shape.

iRl 1 A 1-::-‘!~\h;n RIS RSN

BISMILLAHIR RAHMANIR RAHIM

WORKSHOP ON “UCP 600’

DURATION : FEBRUARY 10, 2007
ORGANIZED BY :

) AL-ARAFAH ISLAMI BANK TRAINING & RESEARCH ACADE

32, TOPKHANA ROAD,CHITTAGONG
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Al-Arafah Islami Bank Foundation

A portion of income of the bank is being spent on
philanthropic activities. Among other philanthropic
activities, running of Al-Arafah English Medium
Madrasah and Al-Arafah Islami Bank Library are
praiseworthy:.

Cinnual .?f’/ﬂﬂ;
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Al-Arafah English Medium Madrasah

Al-Arafah English Medium Madrasah has been
established by the Al-Arafah Islami Bank Foundation
with a view to building next generation according to
the ideals of peace and equality of Islam and to
establishing banking and other aspects of life in the
way of Islam. The prime aim of this madrasah is to
contribute towards building human resourse and in the
broader sense to ensure human welfare. With this in
view Al-Arafah Islami Bank Foundation has
established an English Medium Madrasah at 21/1,
Zigatola, Dhanmondi in 1999. Such institution up to
O/A level of its kind is for the first time in Bangladesh.
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Al-Arafah Islami Bank Library

Library is the carrier & reservoir of
knowledge. Al-Arafah Islami Bank has
shown that other than generating profit, it can
also contribute significantly in the field of
providing good source of knowledge by
establishing a public library at 32, Topkhana
Road, Chittagong Bhaban (1st floor), Dhaka,
thus strengthening social development. It is

placed in a sound, healthy surroundings.

It harbours 22.000 books of reference for the
researchers, students, professionals, bankers,
physicians, engineers, politicians, writers or
journalists, even for the kids. It is open to all
from the year 2000 and well located &
accessible to everybody.

It procured some exceptional collection of

books on religion, economics, banking,
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computer science, business

administration, sociology,

English & Arabic language and
juvenile literature in Bangla,
English., Urdu & Arabic, which

arc very rare.

‘ Appreciation

The Board of Directors expresses its
gratitude to the Almighty Allah for
enabling the Bank to achieve remarkable progress in
all respect during the year 2006. The Board extends
thanks to the Ministry of Finance, the Bangladesh
Bank SEC, RISC Audit Firm, DSE. CSE and other
Government and non-Government agencies for
providing assistance, support and co-operation,

The Board of Directors also extends compliments to
all shareholders, clients and well-wishers for their
valuable support and confidence reposed in the
Bank.

The Board of Directors also expresses its great
appreciation and thanks to all officials of the Bank
for their untiring efforts and dedication in bringing
about better result during the year under report. The
Board also hopes that they shall continue to strive
hard to attain a much better result in the coming year.

May the Almighty Allah give us dedication, patience
and fortitude to serve the cause of Islam and to go
ahead with our mission to run the Bank as per the
principles of Islamic shariah.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

=71

(Alhajj Md. Anowar Hossain)
Chairman
Date: May 13, 2007 Dhaka
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AIBL AT A GLANCE

(Million Taka)
Particulars 1999 2000 2001 | 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
Authorised Capital 1000.00 | 1000.00 | 1000.00 | 1000.00 1000.00 1000.00 | 1000.00 | 2500.00
Paid up Capital 253.00 | 253.00 | 253.00 | 253.00 506.00 58696 | 677.94| 854.20
Reserve Fund 46.86 73.07 | 117.63 | 15543 231.89 48896 | 54222 83598
Share holders Equity 299.86 | 326.07 | 370.63 | 408.43 737.89 957.26 | 1220.16 | 1690.18
Deposit 6415.79 | 7307.59 | 7879.18 |7163.00 | 8643.27 | 10108.28 | 11643.66 |16775.33
Investment 3793.71 | 3728.41 5079.21 |6403.60 |  7571.54 8150.16 | 11474.41 117423.19
Import 5555.51 | 5979.90 [5559.27 |5162.51 7698.29 9337.49 | 12631.60 | 18821.40
Export 2304.21 | 3313.20 |{2524.63 [1894.77 | 3075.52 3639.34 | 4932.90 | 9142.70
Total Income 53476 | 752.19 | 800.35| 835.42 987.68 1120.85 | 1452.68 | 2172.48
Total Expenditure 464.30 | 59845 | 678.84| 671.48 681.34 77196 | 90448 | 1202.71
Profit before Tax and Provision | 70.47 67.00 | 39.48| 163.94 306.34 348.89 | 54820| 969.77
Profit after Tax and Provision | 31.70 30015 19535 507 127.06 15476 | 26290 470.02
Tax 24.66 2345 13.82| 57.76 | 103.96 157.00 | 215.10| 385.45
Total Assets 7746.04 | 8584.95 [9253.77 |8759.33 | 10886.82 | 12874.61 [15336.89 |21368.16
Fixed Assets 50.35 5244 | 5854 114.83 126.23 195.17 | 208.00| 215.10
Earning per Share 181.04 | 172.14 | 101.43 | 31242 251.10 263.67 | 387.80| 550.24
Dividend 12% } 12% 1.5% 20% | Bonus 16% {Bonus15.50% |Bonus 26% |Bonus 35%
Number of Shareholders 6319 5849 5778 5557 5584 5379 5402 4487
Nmber of Employees 664 674 659 670 685 803 i | 912
Number of Branch 35 37 40 40 40 40 41 46
Manpower per Branch 19 18 16 17 17 20 19 20
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Auditors' report to the shareholders of Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited /,

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited ("the Bank")
namely the Balance Sheet as of 31 December, 2006, and the related Profit and Loss Account, Cash flow
Statement, Statment of changes in Equity, Statment of Liquidity Analysis and notes 1 to 30 thereto for the year
then ended. Preparation of these financial statements and notes thereto are the responsibility of the Bank's
management. Our responsibility. an independent auditors, is to express an opinion on these financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Bangladesh Standards on Auditing (BSA). Those standards require

that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free

of material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of financial statement.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We report that :

i) Employee's benefit by way of Gratuity has been provided in first time by the Bank from the year under audit,
which is not provided fully in compliance of BAS-19

1) There is a balance of Tk.223.986.119 with The Oriental Bank Ltd under Savings Account No. 42909 as of
31.12.2006, recovery of the same is not as per the demand of the Bank.

In our opinion. Subject to the matters stated in the preceding paragraphs, (i) & (ii) and consequential effects

thereon the financial statements, prepared in accordance with Bangladesh Accounting Standards (BAS) and read

in conjuction with the annexed notes and Management Report. give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs

of the Bank as of 31 December, 2006 and of the results of its operations and it's cash flows for the year then

ended and comply with Bank Companies Act 1991, Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and exchange Rules

1987 and rules and regulations issued by the Bangladesh Bank and other applicable laws and regulations.

We also report that:

i) We have obtained all information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof and found them satisfactory:

ii) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law were kept by the Bank so far as it appeared from
our examination of those books and proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been received
from branches not visited by us;

1ii) The records and statements submitted by the branches have been properly maintained and consolidated in
the financial statements.

iv) The balance sheet. profit and loss account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account and returns;

v) The financial statements have been drawn up in conformity with the Bank Companies Act 1991 and in
accordance with the accounting rules and regulations issued by the Bangladesh Bank and the financial
statements conform to the prescribed standards set in the accounting regulations issued by the Bangladesh Bank
after consultation with the professional accounting bodies of Bangladesh as per BRPD circular 14 dated 25th
June 2003;

vi) The financial position of the Bank at 31 December, 2006 and the profit for the year then ended have been
properly reflected in the financial statements, and the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles;

vii) Adequate provisions have been made for advances, investment and other assets which are in our opinion,
doubtful of recovery ;

viii) The expenditure incurred during the year were for the purpose of the business of the bank's :

ix) 80% of the risk-weighted assets have been reviewed spending over 3,500 man hours.

AAO~ ol d % L
KHAN WAHAB SHAHIQUE RAHMAN & CO.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

11 March, 2007
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PROPERTY AND ASSETS

Cash

In hand (including foreign currencies)

Balance With Bangladesh Bank and Sonali Bank
(including foreign currencies)

Balance with other Banks and Financial Institutions
In Bangladesh

Outside Bangladesh

Money at Call & Short Notice
Investment in Shares
Governments

Others

Investment

General Investment etc.

Bills purchased and discounted

Fixed assets including Premises, Furniture and Fixture

Other Assets
Non-Banking Assets
Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Liabilities

Borrowing from other Banks Financial Institutions and agents

Deposit and other Accounts

Al-Wadia Current Accounts and Others Accounts efc.
Mudaraba Savings Deposit

Mudaraba Short Notice Deposit

Mudaraba Term Deposit

Mudaraba Special Deposit

Bills Payable

Other Liabilities

Total Liabilities (9+10)

Capital/Share holders equity

Paid up Capital

Asset Revaluation Reserve

Statutory Reserve

Exchange Equalisation

Retained Earning

Total Share holders equity

Total Liability and Share holders equity

Balance Sheet as at 31 December. 2006

Notes

~1

10

11

12

13

2006 2005

Taka Taka
232,088.682 215,076,298
1.523.363.956 1,041,878,189
1,755,452,638 1.256,954,487

1,001,829.867
24.616,909

1,685.451.726
148,358,265

1,026,446,776

1,833,809,991

15,571,766,350

9.858.411,266

1,851,423.411 1,616,000,765
17,423,189,761 11,474,412,031
215,105,651 207,998,760
947,973,316 563,712,927
21,368,168,142 15,336,888,196

2.443,198,486
3,393.889,202

489,435,134
7,874,927,822
2,311,235,299

1,997,518,930
3,034,099,564

361,454,432
4.041,409,656
1,971,479,235

196,649,305 237,695,675
16,775,335,248 11,643,657,492
2.902.648,591 2,473,065,666
19,677,983,839 14,116,723,158
854,204,000 677,939,000
64,603,248 64,603,248
470,317.865 299,223,928
2,057,198 2,057,198
299,001,992 176,341.664
1,690,184,303 1,220,165,038
21,368,168,142 15,336,888,196
(40
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L Balance Sheet as at 31 December, 2006 )

OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Contingent Liabilities
Acceptance and endorsement
Letters of Guarantee

Letters of Credit

Bills for Collection

Other Contingent Liabilities
Total

Less : Margin

Other Commitments :

Documentary Credits and other short term trade related transactions - -

Forward Assets Purchased and forward Deposit placed

Undraw note issuance and Revolving underwriting Facilities - -
Undraw Formal standing Facilities. Credit lines and others commitments - -

Total of Balance sheet items including contingent liabilities

Notes 2006 2005

14 Taka Taka
520,154,732 299,150,653
5,779.158.952 3.481.736.610
78.276.574 13,045211
6,377,590,258 3.793.932.474
612,935,135 377.144.599
5,764,655,123 3,416,787,875
5,764,655,123 3,416,787,875

Accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

:Z( S =4

Senior Vice President Managing Director

Signed as per our annexed report of even date.

A ACA~ </a~/<,( 2 /) ch—t -
KHAN WAHAB SHAyé%E RAHMAN & CO.

Chartered Accountants
11 March, 2007
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Profit and Loss Accounts for the year ended 31 December, 2006

Notes
Investment Income 15
Profit paid on deposits 16
Net Investment Income
Commission. Exchange and Brokerage 17
Other Operating Income 18
Total operating income
Salaries and allowances & Contribution to P.F 19
Directors and Sharia Council fees and expenses 20
Rent, taxes, insurance, lighting etc. 21
Postage. telegram, telephone and stamp etc. 22
Legal charges
Audit fee
Salary & Allowances to the Managing Director
Depreciation and repairs to the bank's properties
Stationery, printing, advertisement etc. 23
Other expenses 24
Total operating expenses
Profit / (Loss) before Tax & provision
Provision against Investments 25

Other provisions

Total provision

Profit/(Loss) before Tax
Current Tax

Deferred Tax

Provision for Taxation

Net Profit/(Loss) after tax
Retained earning brought forward

Appropriation

Statutory Reserve

Retained Earnings
Earning per Ordinary share (EPS)

Accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

=3 1
Managing Director Diréctor

Signed as per our annexed report of even date.

Tl
Senior Vice President

AhOmn kol 270 e A
KHAN WAHAB SHME R%HMAN & CO.

Chartered Accountants
11 March, 2007
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Director

2006 2005
Taka Taka
1.701.397.140 ||  1,118,339,963
(819.714.448) ||  (550.797.453)
881,682,692 567,542,510
354.330.314 ‘ 267,312,793
116,754.951 || 67.032.616
471,085,265 334,345,409
1.352,767,957 901,887,919
253.064.455 232,787,796
3.879.804 3.119.855
40,352,105 34,696,877
13,597.210 11.103,505
2,711,699 3,139,353
100.000 100.000
2,600,000 2.840.000
15,806,628 16,542,596
9,559,875 7.926,331
41.326.495 | 41428391
382,998,271 353,684,704
969,769,686 548,203,215
114.300.000 70.000.000
- 200,000
114,300,000 70,200,000
855,469,686 478,003,215
384.023.920 215,101,447
1,427,360 .
385,451,280 215,101,447
470,018,407 262,901,768
77.523 1,440,539
470,095,930 264,342,307
171,093.937 |[  95.600.643 |
171,093,937 95,600,643
299,001,992 168,741,664
550.24 387.80

&

Chairman

aﬁ) Co.

Chartered Accountants

D
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( Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 December 2006

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit recieved in cash

Profit paid by cash

Dividend recieved

Fees & Commission received in cash

Recoveries of loans prevoiusly written off

Cash paid to employees

Cash paid to suppliers

Income taxes paid

Received from other operating activities (item-wise)

Paid for other operating activities (item-wise) 26
Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities
Increase/(Decrease) in Operating assets and liabilities

Statutory deposits

Purchase-sale of trading securities

Investment and advances to other banks

Investment and advances to customers (other than Banks)

Other assets (item-wise) 27
Deposits from other banks

Deposits from customers (other than Banks)

Other liabilities account of customers

Trading liabilities (item-wise) 28
Net Cash received from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of securites

Payments for purchases of securities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Sales proceeds of Fixed assets

Purchase-sale of subsidiary

- Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Increase in Exchange Equalization Account
Increase in Share Capital

Dividend paid

. Net cash received from financing activities

. Net (decrease)/ increase in cash (A+B+C)

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash-equivalents

Opening cash and cash-equivalents

Closing cash and cash-equivalents (D+E) 29

Accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

e
e
«/// /

Senior Vice President

o
Director

T

Managing Director

L33
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2066
Taka

1,701.397,140
(819.714,448)
354,330,314
14.389.901
(253.064.455)
(5.647.982)
(250.302,555)
102.365,050
(112.679,142)
731,073,823

(9.194,969,189)
18.496,998
341.462,000
7.879.886,573

(66.185.106)
(290,234,901)

(18.631.025)

2005
Taka

1.115.661,753
(550,797.453)

267,312,793
2,678,210
(232,787,796)
(6,367.181)
(120,309,105)
67,032,616
(102,966,377)
439,457,460

(4.953.147,020)
30,728,183
(79,222,000)
3.168,892.817
389,628,105
(1,003,662,455)

(25.286,198)

(18,631,025) (25,286,198)
861 200
861 200
(308,865,065) (1,028,948.453)
3,090.764.478 4,119,712,931
2,781.899,413 3,090,764,478
— /M

Director Chairman
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 )

1.0

2.0

3.0
3.1

STATUS OF THE BANK

Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited was established in 1995 under the companies Act, 1994 as a banking
Company with Limited Liability by shares. It is an interest free Shariah bank of Bangladesh rendering all
types of commercial banking services under the regulation of Bank Companies Act, 1991. The Bank
conducts its business on the principles of Musaraka, Bai-Murabaha, Bai-muazzal and Hire Purchase
transactions approved by Bangladesh Bank. Naturally, its modes and operations are substantially different
from those of other conventional commercial banks. There is a Shariah Council in the bank who
maintains constant vigilance to ensure that the activities of the bank are being conducted on the percepts
of Islam. The Shariah Council consists of prominent Ulema, reputed Bankers. renowned Lawyers and
eminent Economist.

NATURE OF BUSINESS

All kinds of commercial banking services are provided by the bank to the customers following the
provisions of Banking Companies Act. 1991, Bangladesh Bank's directives and the principles of
Islamic Shariah.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
Preparation of financial statement

These accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis under the historical cost convention and on
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles consistently with those of previous year. Although the
operation of the Bank are in strict compliance with the rules of Islamic Shariah. the Financial Statements
have been prepared basically as per Bank Company Act 1991, Bangladesh Accounting Standard (BAS).
Financial Accounting Standard issued by the Accounting and Auditing Organization for Islamic
Financial Institutions.

3.2 Basis of Consolidation

A separate set of records for consolidating the statement of Affairs and Income & Expenditure Statement
of the Branches are maintained at the Head Office of the Bank in Dhaka from which the financial
statement are dawn up.

3.3 Investments

Investments are stated in the Balance Sheet at principle plus mark-up profit.

3.4 Revenue recognition

a)

b)

c)

Income from investments has been accounted for on accrual basis except investment under Musharaka.
Income in case of Musharaka is accounted for on realization basis. Besides, fees and commission income
are recognized when earned. The Bank dose not charge any rent during the gestation/interim period of
investment under hire purchase, but it fixes the sale price of the assets at a higher price in such a way to
cover its expected rate of return. Such income is recognized on realization basis.

Profit/rent/compensation accrued on classified investment are suspended and accounted for as per
Circulars issued by the Bangladesh Bank. Moreover, incomes which are irregular (doubtful) as per Shariah
are also not included in the distributable income of the Bank. Bank charges compensation on unclassified
overdue Bai-Murabaha and Bai-Muazzal investment. Such compensation is not permissible by Shariah to
take into regular income of the Bank. Therefore, the amount of compensation treated as a component of
provision against bad & doubtful investment. Interest received due to legal obligation is also not taken into
regular income of the Bank.

Income was calculated on daily product basis and charged yearly.

D
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 )

35

3.6

i)

37

3.8

Provisions on Investment

a) Provision for Investment is made on the basis of year end review by the management and instructions
contained in Bangladesh Bank BCD Circular no. 34 dated 16 November 1989, BCD Circular no. 20 dated 27
December 1994, BCD Circular no. 12 dated 4 September 1995, BRPD Circular no.16 dated 6 December 1998
and BRPD Circular no. 9 dated 14 May 2001. BRPD Circular no.02 of February 2005, BRPD Circular no.09
of August 2005 and BRPD Circular no.17 of dated 06 December 2005.The classification rates are given below:

The provision rates are given below :

General provision on unclassified Investment @ 1%
General provision on small enterprise Investment @ 2%
General provision on consumer financing Investment @ 2%
General provision on special mention Investment @ 5%
Specific provision on substandard Investment @ 20%
Specific provision on doubtful Investment @ 50%
Specific provision on bad/loss Investment @ 100%

b) Investment are written off to the extent that (i) there is no realistic prospect of recovery, (ii) and against
which legal cases are pending for more than five years as per guidelines of Bangladesh Bank.

Fixed assets and depreciation

a) All fixed assets are stated at cost or revaluation less accumulated depreciation. But no depreciation has
been charge on addition to fixed assets during the year for the days of use. The following assets was
revalued at 31st December 2004 on the basis indicated below :

Land

By a professional valuer on the basis of market value at 31st December 2004. The valuer was independent of
the company. The property is located within Dist : Dhaka, P. S Motijheel, Sub - registry office : Sutrapur,
Dhaka collectorate Touzi # 141-B-1, Mouza : Sabek Shahar Dhaka, Sheet # 22, Ward # 03, Sabek Khatian #
6947, 6947 |[KA]. 6947[Jha], Sabek Dag # 97, 100,101,102 and 110, SA Mouza : Ramna, Sheet # 10, SA
Khatian # 362, SA Dag # 1979.1980,1981,2025,1997,1998 and 1979/2039, RS Mouza : Motijheel, RS
Khatian # 420, RS Dag # 1314 and 1322, D.P Khatian # 619, D.P Dag # 812 and 804. The area of land
measuring about 27. 10 decimal, Mutation Khatian # 362/3 and Dag # 1979 and 1980. The land was revalued
at Tk. 5.000.000 per decimal. The cost of which was Tk. 2.116.116 per decimal. The Bank accounted for
90% of book value of revaluation. Total capital gains amounting Tk. 64,603,249 out of which 50% was
included capital revaluation A/c. as per Bangladesh Bank Circular.

b) Depreciation is charged at the following rates on a reducing balance method on all fixed assets other than
motor vehicles. which are depreciated on a straight-line basis. But no depreciation has been charged on land.

Assets Percentage
Furniture and Fixture 10
Motor Car 20
Mechanical Appliances 15
Books 20
Computer 15

¢) Maintenance and repairs cost when incurred are charged to Profit and Loss Account.
Maintenance and repairs cost when incurred are charged to Profit and Loss Account.

Allocation of distributable profit
The investment income (except exchange and commission income) is shared between depositors and the
bank @ 70 : 30.

Exchange rates
a) The transactions in foreign currencies are converted into equivalent Taka currency using the ruling
exchange rates prevailed on the dates of such transactions.

b) The assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies as on 31 December 2005 are translated into
Taka currencies at the prevailing selling and buying rates of the concerned foreign currencies.

¢) Gains and loss of translation are dealt with through exchange account.

L47]
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L Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 )

3.9 Basic Earning per share
This has been calculated by dividing the basic earning by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year. Diluted earning per share is required to be calculated for the year, as there is
scope for dilution during the year under review.

3.10 Cash flow Statement
Cash flow statement is prepared principally in accordance with BAS-7 Cash flow Statement” and the cash
flow from the operating activities have been presented under direct method as prescribed by the securities
and exchange rules 1987 and considering the provision of paragraph is(b) of BAS-7 which provides that
enterprise are encouraged to report cash flow from operating activities using the direct method.

3.11 Retirement benefit and staff welfare schemes
The Bank operates a contributory Provident fund, Social Security Fund and Benevolent Fund. These funds
are managed by separate Board of Trustees.

3.11.1Gratuity:
The bank is maintaining a gratuity fund for the employees. The bank did not provide calculation of
provision for gratuity required as per BAS 19, but during the year a lumsum provision for Tk.56 lakh has
been provided in the accounts.

3.12 Taxation
Provision for income tax has been made @45% as prescribed in finance act 2006 of the profit made by the
bank considering taxable add-back of income and disallowance of expenditure. Tax return for the income
year 2005 (Assessment year 2006-2007) has been filed but assessment is to be done by the tax authority.

3.12.1 Deferred Tax:
The bank recognized deferred tax in accordance with the provision of BAS-12.Deferred tax arises due to
temporary difference deductible or taxable for the events or transaction recognized in the income statement,
A temporary difference is the difference between the tax base of an assets or liability and its carrying
amount/reported amount in the financial statement. Deferred tax assets or liability is the amount of income
ltax payable or recoverable in future period(s) recognized in the current period. The deferred tax
assets/expenses does not create a legal Liability/recoverability to and from the income tax authority.

3.13 Reconciliation of interbank/books of accounts
Books of accounts in regard to Inter-branches are reconciled and there are no material differences, which
may affect the financial statements significantly. Unrecognized entries in case of inter-branch transactions as
on the reporting date are not mentionable due to the time gap before finalizing the same.

3.14 Risk Management

The risk of Al-Arafah Islami Bank limited is defined as the possibility of losses, financial or otherwise. The
risk management of the Bank covers 6 (six) Core risk Areas of banking i.e Credit risk management, foreign
exchange risk management, Assets Liability Management, prevention of money laundering and
establishment of Internal Control and Compliance and information & Communication technolology. The
prime objective of the risk management is that the Bank takes well calculative business risks while
safeguarding the Bank's capital, its financial resources and profitability from various risks. In this context,
the Bank took steps to implement the guidelines of Bangladesh Bank as under :

3.14.1 Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is one of the major risks faced by the Bank. This can be described as potential loss arising from
the failure of a counter party to perform as per contractual agreement with the Bank. The failure may result
from unwillingness of the counter party of decline in his/her financial condition. Therefore, Bank's credit
risk management activities have been designed to address all these issues. The bank has an Investment
(Credit) Risk Management Committee at Head Office. The committee reviews the investment risk issues on
monthly basis. The bank has segregated the Investment Approval. Investment Administration, Investment
Recovery and Legal Authority. The Bank has segregated duties of the officers/executives involved in credit
related activities. A separate Business Development (Marketing) Department has been established at Head
Office, which is entrusted with the duties of maintaining effective relationship with the customer, marketing
of credit products, exploring new business opportunities etc. In the branches of the bank separate officials
are engaged as Relationship Manager, Documentation Officer, Verification Officer, Disbursement Officer
and Recovery Officer. Their jobs have been allocated and responsibilities have been defined.
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3.14.2 Investment (Credit) Risk Grading Manual
The bank has implemented the Investment (Credit) Risk Grading Manual (IRGM) since April 1,2006 which is
made mandatory by Bangladesh Bank vide BRPD Circular No. 18 of December 11,2005. Investment Officials of
the bank have been trained on IRGM. Investment Risk Grading is incorporated in the Investment Presentation
Form for all the cases.

3.14.3 Foreign exchange risk Management

Foreign exchange risk is defined as the potential change in earnings arising due to change in market prices. As per
Foreign Exchange Risk Management Guideline, bank has physically establishment a separate Treasury
Department at Head Office. Under the Treasury Department, Foreign exchange Front Office, Foreign exchange.
Back Office and Local Money Market have been physically demarketed. Duties and responsibilities of them have
also been defined.All foreign exchange transactions are revalued at Mark-to Market rate as determined by
Bangladesh Bank at the month-end. All Nostro accounts are reconciled on monthly basis and outstanding entry
beyond 30 days is reviewed by the Management for its settlement. Regulatory reports are submitted on time to
Bangladesh Bank.

3.14.4 Assets Liability Management
The Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) of the Bank monitors Balance sheet risk and liquidity risks of the Bank.
The Balance Sheet risk is defined as potential change in earnings due to change in rate of profit, foreign exchange
rates which are not of trading nature. The Bank has an Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) that reviews Liquidity
requirement of the bank, the maturity of assets and liabilities, deposit and lending pricing strategy and the
liquidity contingency plan, The primary objective of the ALCO is to monitor and avert significant volatility in net
profit income, investment value and exchange earnings.

3.14.5 Prevention of money laundering

Money laundering risk is defined as the loss of reputation and expenses incurred as penalty for being negligent in
prevention of money laundering. For mitigating the risk the Bank has a Central Compliance Unit (CCU) at Head
Office. The unit reviews the anti money laundering activities of the bank on regular basis. The bank has a
designated chief Anti Money Laundering Compliance Officers (CAMLCO) at Head Office and Branch Anti
Money Laundering Compliance Officers (BAMLCO) at branches. The compliance officers review the suspicious
Transaction (STR) and records them properly.. Manuals for prevention of money laundering have been established
and Transaction profile has been introduced. Training has been continuously given to all the category of officers
and executives for developing awareness and skill for identifying suspicious activities. The bank submits the
Suspicious Transactions Report (STR)., Cash Transaction Reports (CTR) and other periodical reports to
Bangladesh bank on time.

3.14.6 Internal control and compliance

Operational loss may arise from error and fraud due to lack of internal control and compliance. Management
through Internal Control and Compliance Division (ICCD) controls operational of the Bank. Bank has established
separate Internal Audit & Inspection Department, Audit Monitoring Department and Regulatory Compliance
Department under ICCD. Audit Monitoring Department is ensuring the compliance of Audit & Inspection Reports
while Regulatory Compliance Department is ensuring the compliance of Regulatory Rules and Regulations. The
Audit committee of the Board subsequently reviews the reports of the Internal Control and Compliance Division.
ICCD independently reports the Internal Control System and Financial Health of the Board of Directors,

3.14.7 Guideline on information & Communication Technolology :
Technology is the process by which humans modify nature to meet their needs and wants. The term Information
technology' means computers, auxiliary equipment, software and hardware and similar procedures, services and
related resources. Information Technology (IT) developed in a rapidly changing global environment, and
challenges us to courageous initiatives to address a host of vital skilled human resources. To overcome the
challenges the bank has a IT policy. The IT policy of the bank includes the Purchase Policy, Hardware Policy,
Software Development Policy. Banking Application usage Policy, Security Policy, Disaster Recovery Policy etc.
The bank is now implementing its On Line Banking Project complying the IT Policy.

3.15 General
a) The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the formats prescribed under the Banking Companies
Act, 1991.and in Compliance with the rules of Islamic Law (Shariah) related to the banking business activities.
b) The figures appearing in these accounts have been rounded off to the nearest taka.

¢) Wherever necessary previous year's figures have been rearranged to conform to the current year's presentation,
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4. Cash

a) Cash in hand
In local currency
In Foreign currency

b) Balance with Bangladesh Bank
In local currency
In Foreign currency

c¢) Balance with Sonali Bank
In local currency
In Foreign currency

4.1 Cash Reserve Requirments (CRR) and Statutory Liquidity Requirments (SLR):
Cash Reserve Requirments(CRR) and Statutory Llquidity Requirments (SLR) have been calculated and

2006
Taka

222,163,103
9,925,579

232,088,682

1,192,184,127
110,307,144

1,302,491,272

220,872,684

220,872,684
1,755,452,638

2005
Taka

209,330,155
5,746,143

215,076,298

1,010,539.059
(214,132,331)

796,406,728

245471461

245,471,461
1,256,954,487

maintained as per Bangladesh bank spacial permisson No: DBOD(BJ)/120A/155/95 Date 19/10/1995.
4.2 Cash Reserve Requirments (CRR) & Statutory Liqudity Requirments (SLR) 10% of Average Demand

and Time Liabilities :

Actual Reserve held
Required Reserve
Surplus

5. Balance with other Banks and financial institutions

a) In Bangladesh:

Al-Wadia Current Accounts
Islami Bank Bangladesh Ltd.
Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.
National Bank Ltd.

IFIC Bank Ltd.
Agrani Bank
Pubali Bank

Mudaraba Saving Deposits
Dhaka Bank Ltd.
Prime Bank Ltd.
Social Investment Bank Ltd.
Shahajalal Bank Ltd.
EXIM Bank Ltc.
The Oriental Bank Ltd. [Note - 5.a.1]
Jamuna Bank Ltd.
The City Bank Ltd.
Southeast Bank Ltd.

1,755,452,638

1.461.995.000
293,457,638

207,415
38,559
12,698,959
1,091
1.650
215

12,949,790

238.699.,961
39.655.054
34,704,683

84,100
8,901,524

223,986,119
10,229,590

402,935.293

25,798.030

984,994,354

1.256.954.487
1.041.721.000

—_— e e e

215,233,487

2,227,791
4,518,417
7,448,075
1,029.471
1.650
2,115

15,227,520

839,463,060
20,276,730
131,622,552
113,091,888
8,311,204
260,948,042
50,111,048
124,830,407
19,389,581
1.568,044,512
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2006 2005
Taka Taka
Mudaraba Short Term Deposits
Social investment Bank Ltd. 2,179,694

Shahajalal Bank Ltd. 3.885.723 -
3,885,723 2,479,694

Mudaraba Term Deposis

Islamic Finance & Investment Ltd - 100,000,000
- 100,000,000
1,001,829,967 1,685,451,726

Note : 5.a.1.Balance with The Oriental Bank Tk.223,986.119 . It consists of the following :

Opening Balance as on 01.01.2006 260,948,042
Add. Profit transferred from saving A/c 15,188,077
Less: Recovered during the year (52,150,000)
Balance as on 31.12.2006 223,986,119

Due to liquidity problem of The Oriental Bank Ltd. the amount could not be recovered as on demand.

2006 2005
b) Outside Bangladesh (Nostro Accounts) Taka Taka
Name of the Bank Currency Amlmflt in | Convertion Amount Amount
Foreign rate per In In
Currency unit F.C BDT. BDT.
American Express Bank, New York,USA UsD 1,299,308 70.50 91,600,136 43.904,459
Standered Chartered Bank New York,USA USh (1.946,194) 70.48 (137.174.432)| | 32,606,745
Mashreq Bank New York,USA USD 101,389 70.86 7,184,586 26,041,655
American Express Bank.Kalkata, India ACUD 163,985 70.64 11,584,705 (1.,405,059)
Standered Chartered Bank. Kalkata.India ACUD 184,861 70.99 13,122,935 (2.506,634)
Standered Chartered Bank.Karachi,Pakistan ACUD 54,101 71.48 3.867,119 1,885,041
Sonali Bank, Kalkata.India ACUD 64,694 71.49 4,625,262 4,461,998
CICI Bank ,Mombai,India ACUD 14,504 1211 1,045,896 (9.329.,881)
Bank of Bhutan, Bhutan Hong Kong ACUD 48,738 70.47 3434472 7,810,800
Shangai Banking Corp,Mombai India ACUD 29,992 70.51 2,114,637
American Express Bank, frankfurt, EURO 9,021 92.56 835016 3,949,180
GermanyStandered Chartered Bank, London, UK EURO 86,061 93.50 8,046,930 25,572,346
American Express Bank,Tokyo,Japan IPY 13,633,841 0.62 8,441,844 4,771,635
Standered Chartered Bank,London,UK GBP 36911 136.9 5,053,348 9,761,526
Al-Rajhi Banking Corp.Riad KSA SRL 53,150 15.70 834.455 I | 834455
24,616,909 148,358,265
Total 1,026,446,776 1,833,809,991
<D
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(: Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 }
¢ Maturity - wise Groupings ( Inside & Outside Bangladesh ) 2006 2005
Payable on Demand Taka Taka
Payable on Demand 111,449,225 172,031,971
Up to I ( one ) month 890,380,642  1,413.419.755
Over | ( one ) Month but not more than 3 ( three ) Months 24,616,909 248,358,265
Over 3 ( three ) Months but not more than 1 ( one ) year - -
Over | year but not more than 5 years - -
Over 5 years . -
1,026,446,776  1,833,809,991
6. Investments
a) Maturity grouping of Investment
Including bills purchased and discounted
Payable on Demand . -
Up to 1 ( one ) month : 365,845,963 245,065,085
Over 1 ( one ) Month but not more than 3 ( three ) Months 2.125.698.569 1,054,846,915
Over 3 ( three ) Months but not more than 1 ( one ) year 11,062,542,036  8,485,216,030
Over 1 year but not more than 5 years 2,715,450,536 562,256,000
Over 5 years 1,153,652,657 1,127,028,001
17,423,189,761 11,474,412,031

N.B.- Investment included unearned profit on investment

b) Investments

General Investment :

Murabaha, Bai-Muazzal ., Hire Purchase, Musharaka etc. 15,571,766,350 9,858,411,266

Bill Purchased :
Payable in Bangladesh 1.644,845,662 1,548,127 124
Payable out side Bangladesh 206,577,749 67,873,644
1,851,423,411 1,616,000,765
17,423,189,761 11,474,412,031
¢) An analysis to disclose following Significant concentration :
i) Investment to Directors and others 75.025.000 61,518,000

ii) Investment to Managing Director and Cheif Executive

1i1) Investment to customer (No. of clients with amount of

outstanding and classified loan to whom loans and Investment

sanctioned more than 10% of total capital of the Bank)

iv) Investments to customers for more than 10% of Bank's total Capital

Number of clients

Amount of outstanding Investment
Amount of Classified Investment

7,785.900.000

44
7.785.,900,000

3,535.300.000

19
3,535,300,000
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Outstanding Balance (Taka in core) 2006 2005
Taka Taka
Name of Clients Funded || Non-Funded || Total Total
01 | M/s Bengal Hurricane Dying & Printing Private Ltd. & its sister concern M/s 24.58 19.37 43.95 17.85
Novel Hurricane Knit Garments Ltd.
02 | Birds Garments Ltd. Unit-2 & its sister concern M/s Birds RNR Fashion Ltd. 13.49 30.30 43.79 23.03
03 | M/s PHP Continuous Galvanizing Mills Ltd. & its sister concern M/s PHP 29.85 10.84 40.69 68.58
NOF Continuous Galvanizing Mills Ltd. M/s PHP Float Glass Industries Ltd.
04 | M/s Brothers Construction Company 17.11 14.26 3137 -
05 | M/s Abdul Gafur & its sister concern 30.12 0.00 30.12 30.85
06 | M/s Zaber Spinning Mills Ltd. 26.64 2.78 29.42 -
07 | M/s Sufia Cotton Mills Ltd. 28.77 0.00 28.77 17.97
08 | M/s Runner motors & M/s Runners Auto mobiles Ltd. 15.47 13.24 28.71 -
09 | M/s Yeasmin Spinnng Mills Ltd. 23.21 481 28.02 18.67
10 | M/s Petrolub Ltd. & its sister concern M/s Ben Marrine Line. 22.87 3.80 26.67 20.01
11 | M/s Abdul Monem Ltd. 25.31 0.47 25.78 18.28
12 | M/s Nitol Motors Ltd. 2322 1.86 25.08 -
13 | M/s Abul Khair Steel Industries Ltd. & its sister conern. 2424 0.00 24.24 26.91
14 | M/s Fresh Foods Ltd. 24.14 0.00 24.14 -
15 | M/s Flora Ltd. 18.99 252 2151 7.08
16 | M/s Good Luck Trading 0.00 21.00 21.00 -
17 | M/s Younus Paper Mills Ltd. 20.15 0.00 20.15 8.13
18 | M/s Rasel Marin Store & its sister concern M/s Sadia Enterprise 18.26 1.25 19.51 21.85
19 | M/s Tallu Spinning Mills Ltd. 8.67 9.18 17.85 -
20 | M/s Mashihata Sweaters Ltd. 11.78 5.97 1775 -
21 | M/s Essential Drugs co. Ltd. 13.97 354 17.51 -
22 | M/s J.R. Knit fashion & its sister concern M/s R. & J Sweaters Itd. 4.63 12.40 17.03 -
23 | M/s A.B. Ship Breaking Ind. 11.29 551 16.80 -
24 | M/s Jalalabad Frozen Foods Ltd. 16.27 0.00 16.27 -
25 | M/s Rahima Ispat Ltd. 0.00 16.20 16.20 -
26 | M/s Aman Knittings Ltd. 9.37 5.88 125 -
27 | M/s Al Islam Fashion Wear Ltd. 7.97 6.50 14.47 -
28 | M/s Shetu Corporation Ltd . & M/s Shetu Agro Industries Ltd. 11.75 1.81 13.56 11.13
29 | M/s Hasin Knit Composite Ltd & its sister concern M/s Kaveba Knit Wear Ltd. 1.63 11.76 13.39 -
30 | M/s Garib & Garib Ltd. 4.50 8.69 13.19 3.74
31 | M/s Kazi Chicks Ltd. Kazi Foods Ltd.& Kazi Farms Ltd. 9.60 0.00 9.60 -
32 | M/s Golden Trading Co. 2.80 6.21 9.01 -
33 | M/s Karnaphuly Knit Ind. Ltd. 3.29 3.44 6.73 6.64
34 | M/s Navaran Printing & Packeging Ltd. 6.63 0.00 6.63 -
35 | M/s T.K. Oil Refinery Ltd. 5.73 0.00 5.73 -
36 | M/s Naziat Sweaters Itd. 2.02 3.69 5.71 -
37 | M/s Deen Paper Converting & Packaging 5193 0.00 323 -
38 | Comfort Trading Internatioal 2.93 2.26 5.19 -
39 | M/s Rancon Motors Ltd. 0.00 5.05 5.05 -
40 | M/s Munir Ahmed Brothers 4.75 0.30 5.05 1.64
41 | M/s 8.Q. Wire & Cabble Co. Ltd. 3.08 1.09 4.17 -
42 | M/s Kafil Uddin 3.51 - 351 -
43 | M/s Zeri Subadar Re-Rolling Mills Ltd. 340 - 322 -
44 | M/s Ibrahim Textile mills Ltd. 157 - 157 -
45 | C.A Knitwear - - - 7.39
46 | T.K Pertical Board Mills Ltd. - - - 12.49
47 | Mac Corporation - - - 31.29
Total 542.61 235.98 778.59 353.53
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V)

Vi)

Listing of assets Pledged As Security/Colaterals
Nature of the secured assests

Fixed Assets
Cash & Quasi-Cash
Others

Industry/Sector wise Investments
Agriculture, Fishing and forestry
Industry

Constraction

Water works & sanatary services
Transport & communication
Storage

Trade Finance

Miscellaneous

Total

vii) Geographical Location -wise Investment

d)

Urban;
Dhaka Region
Chittagong Region
Sylhet Region
Rajshahi Region
Khulna Region
Barisal Region

Rural;
Dhaka Region
Chittagong Region
Sylhet Region
Rajshahi Region
Khulna Region

Barisal Region

Investment Classified as per Bangladesh Bank Circular

Standard (Including investments to staff )

Special Mention accounts (SMA)
Sub Standard

Doubtful

Bad / Loss

2006 2005

Taka Taka
15,657,916,000  10.960.541,000
4,288,994.000  3.002,295.000
9,102,231,000  6,371,561,000
29,049,141,000 20,334.397,000
22,356,895 17,124,169

3,238,456,238
1,710,569,528

1,049.919.489
1,059.477,247

523,625,639 149.167.656
102,686,523 55,585,747
11,262,938,090 8,612,902,738
562,556,848 530,234,985
17,423,189,761  11,474,412,031

10,720,616,191 6,391,866,090
2,861,633,990  2,423,277,268
302,884,008 259,927,020
1,453,276,927 979,009,742
1,213,857.854 753,701,898
170.677.381 140,595,437
195,031,686 101,856,029
61,112,594 48,375,726
70,391,156 47,694,261
263.097.056 214,254,488
110,610,918 113,854,071
17,423,189.761 11,474,412,031

16.781.647.644

10,802,201,031

72.514,000 -

20,070,042 37.189,000

18,396,033 18,889,000

530,562,042 616,133,000

17.423,189,761 11.474.412,031
D
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2006 2005
¢) Required Provision on Investment Taka Taka
General provision on unclassified Investment 01% 169,149,934 106,412,000
General provision on small enterprise Investment 02% - =
General provision on consumer financing Investment 02% - :
General provision on special mention Investment 05% 3,625,700 1,829,000
Specific provision on substandard Investment 20% 1,052,790 3,361,000
Specific provision on doubtful Investment 50% 1,286,344 5,256,000
Specific provision on bad/loss Investment 100% 114,494,232 163,992,000
289,609,000 280,850,000
f) Provision made on Investment
General provision on unclassified Investment 01% 169,149,934 115,946,634
General provision on small enterprise Investment 02% - -
General provision on consumer financing Investment 02% - =
General provision on special mention Investment 05% 3,625,700 1,829,000
Specific provision on substandard Investment 20% 1,052,790 3,361,000
Specific provision on doubtful Investment 50% 1,286,344 5,256,000
Specific provision on bad/loss Investment 100% 120,407,179 177,267,951
295,521,947 303,660,585
Provision Excess/(shortfall) 5,912,947 22,810,585

Note : According to the CL-1 statement as of 31.12.2006 submitted to the Bangladesh Bank the required
provision on Investment was shown Tk 28.46 Crore. But subsequent to submission of the said return the
External Auditor has found out additional classified amount of Tk 2.59 Crore. For which additional
required provision Tk 50.00 lac has been provided in this accounts.

g) Particulars of Investments

1) Investment considered good in respect of which of the bank

company is fully secured: 17,395,210,730  11,453,976,285
ii) Investment considered good against which the banking company - -
holds no security other then the debtors personal guarantee.
ii1) Investment considered good secured by the personal undertaking of one 27,979,032 20,435,745
or more perties in addition to the personal guarantee of the debtors;
iv) Investment adversely classified; provision not maintained thereagainst; - -
v) Investment due by directors or officers of the Banking company - -
or any of these either separately or Jointly with any other persons;
vi) Investment due from companies or firms in which the directors of
the banking company have interests as directors, partners or
managing or in the case of private companies as members; 75,025,000 61,518,000

D
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)

vii) Maximum total amount of Investments including temporary
Investments made at any time during the year to directors or
managers or officers of the banking companies or any of them either
agents severally or jointly with any other persons;

-~ viii)Maximum total amount of Investment including temporary
Investment granted during the year to the companies or firms in
which the directors of the banking company have interests as directors,

partners or managing agents or in the case of private companies as members;

ix) Due from banking companies;

x) Amount of Clssified Investment on which profit has not been charge,
are mentioned as follows:
a) An amount of Bad Investment on which profit has not been charged
b) Decrease/Increase in provision ( Specfic )
¢) Amount of Investment written off;

d) Amount realised against Investment previously written off;
e) Amount of provision kept against Investment classified as "bad/loss"

on the date of preparing the balance sheet ;
f) Profit creditable to the profit suspense/Compensation A/c:
xi) Cumulative amount of the written of Investment;

Xii) Amount written off during the current year;

xiii)The amount of written off Investment for which lawsuit has been field;
h) Bills Purchased and Discounted

As per classification into the following broad categories;

Payable in Bangladesh

Payable outside Bangladesh

As per the remaining maturity grouping in the following order;
Payable within 1 month

Over 1 month but less than 3 month

Over 3 month but less than 6 month

6 months or more

7. Fixed Assets
Land

Building
Furniture (Wood)
Furniture (Steel)
Computer

Motor Car

Machine equipment & appliance
Books & Library

2006 2005

Taka Taka
530.562.042 616.133.000
(8.138.638) (113.956.576)
122,438,638 183,956,576
14.389.901 =
122,746,313 185,884,950
33,732,287 41,117,837
313.757.215 191,318,577
122.438.638 183,956,576
122,438,638 183,956,576

1.644.845.662

1,548,127,121

206,577,749 67,.873.644
1.851.423.411 1,616,000,765
206,577,749 67.873.644

1,644.845,662

1,548,127,121

1,851,423 ,411

1,616,000,765

122.075.000 122,075,000
17,209,580 16,106,726
11,179,858 10,010,590
14.050.504 13,722,528
19,191,028 13.796.210
5,548,501 1,772,310
24,155,724 22,470,083
1.695.456 2,045,253

215,105,651 207,998,760

Schedule of Fixed Assets are given in Annexure - A.
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8. Other Assets
Adjusting A/c Debit Balance
Suspense Account
DD Paid without advice
Stock of Stationery
Stamp in hand
Advance Deposit
Advance Rent
Advance Income Tax & TDS [ Note 8.3 |
Protested Bills
Prepaid Expenditure
Central depository (Bd.) Lid. (Share)
Accrued Income
AIB.General A/C.(Dr.Cr.) [ Note:8.1.a.i ]

8.1 Classification of other Assets under the following catagories:
i) Investment in shares of subsidiary companies; In Bangladesh
i) Stationery, Stamps, Printing materials etc.
iii) Advance rent and advertisement;
iv) Profit accrued on Investment but not collected, commision &
brokerage receivable on shares and debenture and other income receivable
v) Security deposit
vi) Preliminary, formation and organization expenses. renovaiton
development expenses and prepaid expenses
vii) Branch adjustments
viil) Suspenses account
ix) Silver
x) DD Paid without advice
xi) Protested Bills
xii) Others ( Break up -a )

a) Break up of Others
Central depository (Bd.) Ltd. (Share)
Advance Income Tax
AIBL General A/C.(Dr.Cr.) [ Note:8.1.a.i ]

Note: 8.a.1

2006 2005
Taka Taka
5,804,068 2932914
36,182911 5,485,197
24,249 314 51.402,349
10.483.808 10,726,443
344,740 231995
3,764.219 1,987.181
32.086.742 22,831,582
698,186,612 447 884,057
7.614,700 7,614,700
1,237,060 58.204
2,000,000 2.000.000
60,600,722 10,558,305
65.418.420 -
947,973,316 563,712,927
10.828.548 10.958.438
32.086,742 22,831,582
60,600,722 10,558,305
3.764.219 1.987.181
1.237,060 58.204
5.804,068 2,932914
36,182911 5,485,197
24249314 51,402,349
7.614.700 7,614,700
765,605,032 449,884,057
947,973,316 563,712,927
2,000,000 2,000,000
698,186,612 447 884,057
65,418,420 -
765,605,032 449,884,057

: AIBL General Account represents outstanding inter-branch and Head Office transactions (Net)

originated but yet to be responded by the balance sheet date. However, the unrespondent entries of 31.12.2006.

Number of unresponded entries

Dr. Cr.
Up to 3 Months 1150 750
Over 3 Months but within 6 months
Over 6 months but within | year
Over | year but within 5 years
i T
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Unresponded Amount (Crore)

Dr.

534.28

534.28

Cr.
527.74

ST
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8.2 Non-income generating other Assets

Stationery, stamps printing materials etc.

Advance rent and advertisement:;

Profit accrued on Investment but not collect, commission

brokerage receivable on shares on debenture and other income

receivable;

Security deposit

Preliminary, fromation and organization expenses, renovation/

development expenses and prepaid expenses
Branch adjustments;

Suspenses accounts

Central depository (Bd.) Ltd. (Share)
Advance Tax paid

DD Paid Without advice

Protested Bills

8.3 Advance Income tax & TDS

Vo
S

Begining of the year
Advance tax paid during the year
Tax deducted at Source during the year

Settlement for previous years

Advance income tax at the end of the year

9. Deposit and other Accounts

a) Demand Deposit

Currents Accounts and Other Accounts
Mudaraba Saving Deposit
Bills Payable

b) Time Deposit

Mudaraba Saving Deposit

Mudaraba Term Deposit
Short Notice Deposit
Mudaraba Special Deposit

hidiiieEa

2006 2005

Taka Taka
10,828,548 10,958,438
32.086.742 22,831,582
60,600,722 10,558,305
3,764,219 1,987,181
1,237,060 58,204
5.804.068 2932914
36.182.911 5.485,197
2.000.000 2,000,000
698.186.612 447.884.057
24249314 51,402,349
7,614,700 7.614,700
882,554,896 563,712,927

447.884.057

372,574,952

240,000,000 55.000.000
10,302,555 20.309.105
698,186,612 447.884.057
2,443,198 486 1,997.518,930
339,388,920 303.409.956
196,649,305 237.695.675
2,979,236,711 2,538,624.561

3.054,500,281
7,874,927,822

2,730,689.607
4,041,409,656

489,435,134 361.454.432
2,377,235.299 1.971,479.236
13,796,098,537 9,105,032,931
16,775,335,248 11,643,657,492

D
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 )

¢) Maturity wise Deposit
Repayable on Demand
Repayable within 1 ( one ) month
Repayable over 1 ( one ) Month but within 3 ( three ) Months
Repayable over 3 ( three ) Months within 1 ( one ) year
Repayable over 1 ( one ) year within 5 ( five ) years
Repayable over 5 ( five ) years within 10 ( ten ) years
Unclaimed Deposits 10 (ten) Years and above

10. Other Liabilities

Dividend Payable

Provision for Income Tax [ Note-10.1 ]

Provision on Investment [ Note-10.2 ]

Other Provision [Note: 10.1.b]
Provision for Gratuity

AIBL Foundation

Cash Waaf Fund (Staff)

Hajj Foundation.

Provident fund

F.C Charges

F.C held against back to back L/C
F.C held against EDF

Adjusting Account Credit Balance
QOutstanding Expenses

Unearned profit on Investment
Profit/Rent Suspense
Compensation Receivable
Compensation: Realised

Interest Income

AIBL General Account

Social Security and Benevolent Fund

Performance Bonus
CIB Collection Charge

Provision for Profit on deposit

@D
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2006
Taka

5.980.,922,466
4.047,798,271
3.512,672.698
2,188,671,184

2005
Taka

5.630.768,600
1.911.673.064
1.369.916,102
1.995.011,749

693,830,056 480.197.439
351,440,572 256,090,538
16.775,335,248 11,643,657,492
566,000 603,000
981,202.791 595,751,511
295,521,947 303,660,585
8,491,064 8,741,964
5.611.270 2,133,920

= 10,000,000

200,000 200,000
69.000 69,000

. 87.554

1,200 :

254,527 485 243,152,379
16.750 ;
741,051 261,727
335,630 370.450
1.290.568.665 809,708,313
2,182,906 2,408,966
31,528,589 37,942,510
20,792 766,362
35401 35401

: 402,442,424

1.500.000 1,000,000
26.000.000 49,700,000
27,150 29.600
3,500,000 4,000,000
2,902,648,591 2.473,065,666
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 Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 )

Provision for income Tax

a) Current tax

i) Provision held at the begining of the year

Provision made durring the year
Settlement for previous years
Provision held at the end of the year

ii) Defered tax Liabilities

10.2

a)

b)

Provision held at the begining of the year
Provision made durring the year
Settlement for previous years

Provision held at the end of the year

Provision on Investment & Others:
Provision for Classified Assets:
Provision against Classified Investments (specific)

Provision against Unclassified Investments (general)
Total Provision Held (a)

Provision for Investment

Provision held at the begining of the year

Fully provision debt written off

Recoveries of amount previously written off
Specific provision for the year

Recoveries and Provision no longer required

Net charges to Profit & Loss A/c

Provision held at the end of the year

The movement in general provision on unclassified Investment :

Provision held at the beginning of the year
Provision during the year

Provision held at the end of the year

Provision for Others

Provision held at the beginning of the year

Provision during the year

Less, Adjustment durring the year

Provision held at the end of the year

2006 2005
Taka Taka
981,202,791 595,751,511
595,751,511 380,650,064
384.023.920 215,101,447
979,775.431 595,751,511
1.427.360 =
1,427,360 2

122,746,313

185,884,951

172,775,634 117,775.634
295,521,947 303,660,585
185,884,951 299,841,527
(122,438,638) (183.956,576)
59.300.000 70,000,000
122,746,313 185,884,951
117,775,634 117.775,634
55,000,000 -
172,775,634 117,775,634
295,521,947 303,660,585
8,741,964 10.124.493

- 200,000

8,741,964 10,324,493
(250,000) (1,582,529)
8,491,964 8,741,964

(60
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¢) Compensation Account

Balance held at the begining of the year

Amount transfered to "Profit Rent Suspense” / Compensation A/c during the year

Amount recovered from "Profit Rent Suspense” / Comp. A/c during the year

Amount written off during the year

Balance at the end of the year

11. Capital
a)  Authorised Capital

The Authorized Capital of the Bank is 2,500,000 Ordinary Share of Tk. 1000 each.

Notes to the Financial Staiements for thg_y

b)  Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid - up Capital

Issued for Cash

Issued for other than Cash ( Bonus share )

car ended 31 December 2006 |

2006 2005

Taka Taka
41,117,837 120,135,396
2,709.007 -
(5.616,585) (8.,200.000)
(4.477,972) (70.817,559)
33,732,287 41,117,837
2.500.000,000  1.,000,000,000

480,700,000
373,504,000

480,700,000
197,238,000

854,204,000

677,939,000

¢) Issued and paid up Capital of the Bank is 854204 nos. of shares of Tk. 1000 each as follows :

No. of No. of

Description Shares 2006 || Shares 2005
Sponsors / Promoters 427.065 338.970
General public 427.139 338.969
Total 854,204 677,939

2006 2005
Taka Taka
427,065,000 338,970,000
427,139,000  338.969.000
854,204,000 677,939,000

Note: Bank has increased its paid up capital by issuance of Bonus Shares during the year 2006

d) Break-up of Shares Classification of shareholders by holding as on 31.12.2006
Range of Holding s]:::::z{ d':at;-s No. of Shares
Less than 500 4381 112,447
501 to 5000 77 142,547
5001 to 10,000 a2 23,461
10001 to 20,000 20 302.565
20001 to 30,000 4 87,677
30001 to 40,000 2 185,507

4487 854,204
e) Capital Adequacy Ratio :

Tier-1 ( Core Capital )
Paid-up Capital

854,204,000

% of Shares

1316
16.69
243
3542
10.26
21 72

100.00

677.939.000

Statutory Reserve 470.317.865 299,223,928
Retained Earnings 299,001,992 176,341,664
1,623,523,857 1,153,504,592

@D
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[ Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006 )

2006 2005
Tier- II ( Supplimentary Capital ) Taka Taka
General Provision 172,775,634 117,775,634
Assets Revaluation Reserves 32,301,624 32,301,624
Exchange Equaliation 2,057,198 2,057,198
207,134,456 152,134,456
A. Total Capital 1,830,658.313  1,305.639,048
B. Tortal Risk weighted Assets 17,094,304.569 10,727,863.354
C. Required Capital based on Risk Weighted assets) (9 % on B ) 1.538.487.411 965,507,702
Surplus / ( Deficiency) (A - C) 292,170,902 . 340,131,346
Capital Adequacy Ratio ( % ) 10.71% 12.17%
Capital Requirement Required Held Held
(%) (%)
Tier - I 4.50% 9.50 10.75
Tier - 1T 4.50% 1.21 1.43
Total 9.00% 10.71 12.17
12. Statutory Reserve
Opening balance beginning of the year 299,223,928 203,623,285
Add. Reserve @ 20% (on pre-tax profit) 171,093,937 95,600,643
Balance at the end of the year. 470,317,865 299,223,928

13. Retained Earnings :

Profit before tax

855.,469.686

478,003,215

Less : Provision for Taxation 385,451,280 215,101,447
Net Profit after Tax 470,018,407 262,901,768
Less : Statutory Reserve 171,093,937 95,600,643

298,924,469 167,301,125
Add : Transferred from General Reserve - 7.600,000
Add : Retained earning brought forward 71,523 1,440,539

299,001,992 176,341,664

14. Contingent Liabilities :

a)

Contingent Liabilities are explained in the following manner :
The claims against the Bank not acknowledged as debt money for which the bank is contingently liable in

respect of guarantees given favouring:
Directors
Government

Bank and other financial institution

Others 6.377.590,258  3,793,932.474
6,377.590,258  3,793,932.474
Less: Margin 612,935,135 377,144,599
5,764,655,123  3,416,787.875

62,

CAnnaal gﬁpﬂ it 2006



(’ TR -Notes to the Fmanmal Statements for the year ended 31 Decembe”r 2006 : w)

15. Investment Income
(i) In Bangladesh :
Income from general Investment
Profit received from other Islamic Bank

(ii) Outside Bangladesh :

16. Profit paid on Deposit
Mudaraba Savings Deposit
Mudaraba Short Term Deposit
Mudaraba Term Deposit
Mudaraba Special Deposit

17. Commission & Exchange Brokerage

Commission

Exchange

18. Other operating Income

Locker Rent «———— —

Telex charge ——
Swift .

Postage & Telegram charge
Legal expense

Telephone and fax charges
Rent on Office Premissis
Write off Recovery «

Miscellaneous earnings

19. Salary, Allowances & Contribution to P.F

Basic Salary

House Rent Expenses

Medical Expenses

Conveyance Expenses

Bonus

Bank Contribution to Provident Fund.
Utilities

Car Ex_pensgs

Leave Ehcﬁ:s-hment- Expenses

oZnnual Repart 2006

159,107,743 163,698,062
354330314 267,312,793
L spars 209,676
—— (351,193 1,105,872
(21.009.338 13.016,168
(11056915 5,368,832
(14430 990
(1324377 1.065.459
19,200 :
. 14389.901 -
67,937,122 46,265,619
116,754,951 67.032.616
101,579,892 80,573,883
64,598,356 52.775.292
13.928,291 11,285,498
11,225,562 8,399,430
42,905,399 63,646,680
8.948 624 6,973,138
206,323 548,886
4,159,654 4,521,336
5,512,355 4,063.653
353,064,455 232,787,796

2006 2005

Taka Taka
1.608,123.689 913.429.195
93273 451 204.910.768
1,701,397,140 1.118.339.963
117,898,171 115358125
15,301,728 11.146.961
493,263,713 271,117,260
193,250,836 153 175, 1607
819,714,448 550,797,453

195,222,570

103,614,732




{ 7_:N”otes Vt_(;the Financial Statements for t_lig year ended 31 December 2006:3

2006 2005
20. Director and Sharia Council Fees & Expenses Taka Taka
Directors Fee & Expenses 3,798,383 2,974,850
Sharia Council Fee & Expenses 81,421 145,005
3,879,804 3,119,855
21. Rent, Taxes, Insurance & Lighting etc.
Rent Office 28.084.665 20,411.043
Lighting & Electricity 7.090.031 6,304,801
Insurance 5,177,409 7,981,033
40,352,105 34,696,877
22. Postage,Telegram,Telephone & Stamp etc.
Stamps 2.860 4.110
Postages 2,210,904 1.453.209
Telegram 1.531 2,100
Telex 46,919 235,057
Fax & Internet 23,832 30,470
Rent, rates 264.599 61,027
Swift 4,254,140 3.547.635
Telephone (Office) 5,191,549 4,216,390
Telephone (Residence) 473,682 495919
Telephone (Mobile) 1.127.195 1,057,588
13,597.210 11,103,505
23. Stationary, Printing, Advertisement etc.
Printing & Stationerty 3,756,587 4.811,206
Paper & Table Stationery 1,891,395 1,.555.974
Advertisement & Publicity Expenses 3,911,893 1,559,150
9,559,875 7,926,331
24. Other expenses
Charge & Risk Expenses 1,084,018 1.000.990
Over time . 16.600
Wages 9,870.770 8,679,822
CDBL Fee & Charges 139,677 -
Staff Welfare - 19,195
Social Security & Benevolent fund 1,500,000 1,000,000
Local Conveyance Expenses 1,000,610 918,356
Petrolium oil & Lubricant 2,881,846 2,590,700
Entertainment 2,703,578 1,791,230
Travelling Allowances 4,083,266 3.074,121
Bank Charge 297,708 339,505
Liveries/Uniform 50,963 23.847
Donations 98.315 114,455
D

ofnnual Report 2006




i

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006

Honourirum

Subscription

Banks Clearing House Charge
Transportation Charge

Evening Banking Expenses
News paper. Jurnal & Periodicals
WASA/Gas Charge

Washing Charges

Direct Expenses on Investment

Training Expenses

Upkeep of Branch (Office Premises)

Computer Charges
Excise duty

Misc. Expenses
Gratuity

AIBL Foundation
Sadakhah Fund
Registration Expenses
Development
PhotoCopy Chagre
AGM

Managers Conferance

25.Provision against Investments

On classified Investment as per Bangladesh Bank Circular
On Un-classified Investment as per Bangladesh Bank Circular

26. Paid for other operating Activities
Directors and Shariah Council fees and expenses
Rent, taxes, insurance, lighting etc.
Postage, telegram, telephone and stamp etc.

legal charges
Audit fee

Salary and Allowances to the Managing Director

Repairs to the banks properties
Advertisement
Other expenses

(65
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2006 2005
Taka Taka
417.100 345,600
2,460,916 1,658,953
137,720 125.196
e 502.588
|

224,100 L
362.355

381,305
1,240,611
845,665 set
(3,060.422) 740,825
651,864 859.080
456,012 2,801,047
3,864,608 139,570
25,000 963,644
api s 1,357,280
: 10,000,000

5.600.000
- 200,000
318,859 520
357,950 301212
907,995 647,156
1,667.636 1,057,023
287,267 197,202
41,326,495 41,428,391
59,300,000 70,000,000
55,000,000 -
114,300,000 70,000,000
3,879,804 3,119,855
40,352,105 34,696,877
13,597.210 11,103,505
2,711,699 3,139,353
100,000 100,000
2,600,000 2,840,000
4,199,936 4,979,244
3,911,893 1,559,150
41,326,495 41,428,391
112,679,142 102,966,377




{ Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2006

27. Changes in other Assets
Adjusting A/c Debit Balance

Suspense's Accounts
DD Paid without advice
Stock of Stationery
AIBL General Account
‘ Stamp in hand
Clearing Adjustment
Advance Deposit
Advance Rent
WES Fund Purchase
Foreign Cheque Draft Purchase
Protested Bills
Prepaid Expenditure
Central Depository (Bd.) Ltd. (Share)

28. Changes in other Liabilities
Provision for Gratuity
AIBL Foundation
Provident Fund
F.C Charges
F.C held against back to back L/C
Adjusting Account Credit Balance
Outstanding Expenses
Unearned Profit on Investment
Profit/Rent Suspenses
Compensation Receivable
Compensation Realised
AIBL General Account
Sadakhah Fund
Social Security & Benevolent Fund

Performance Bonus

Dividend Payable

CIB Collection Charge

Other Provision

Fully Provided Debts Written off
Provision for Profit on deposit

)
SR B ;
2006 2005
Taka Taka
2,871,154 385,290
30,697,714 (748,362)
(27.153.035) 42,172,186
(242.634) (423 ,354)
: 4415
112,745 18,618
2 1,318,963
1,777,039 (11,878,344)
9,255,160 ;
2 (121,228)
1,178,856 .
18,496,998 30,728,183
3,477,350 833,920
(10.000,000) 10,000,000
(87.554) (133,575)
1,200 (16,020)
11,375,106 103,251,341
479,324 (123.856)
(34,822) (470,553)
480,860,352 252,105,530
(226,060) 1,131,419
(6:413.921)  (79,783,670)
(745,570) 766,112
(402,442.424) 250,238,407
: 200,000
500,001 500,000
(23,700,000) 32,521,156
(37,000) (49,000)
(2,450) (4,000)
(250,000) (1,382,529)
(122,438,638)  (183,956,576)
3,500,000 4000000
(66,185,106) 389,628,105
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Notes to the Financial Statements for the )@ar e“;'memdﬂ ‘December 2006 )

2006 2005
Taka Taka
29. Cash & Cash Equivalent

Cash in hand 232,088,682 215,076,298
Balance with Bangladesh Bank & Sonali Bank 1,523,363,956 1,041,878.189
Money at call or Short Notice - -
Balance with Other Banks 1,026,446,776 1,833.809,991
Treasury Bill : - L
Prize Bond = 2

2,781,899,413  3,090,764.478

30. Coverage of External Audit

The external auditors have covered 80% of the risk weighted assets and have spent around 3500 men hours to
complete the audit as per Bangladesh standards on Auditing (BSA). They have audited 6 branches and Head
Office of the Banks.

ol
-t [_// =

pE
Senior Vice President Managing Director Digéctor Director Chairman
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General Information

Audit Committee

An Audit Committee was constituted by the Board of Directors of the Bank in its 95th meeting held
on 24th March' 2003 as per BRPD Circular -12 Dated 23-12-2002 and subsequently reconstituted by
the Board of Directors in its 139™ meeting held on 22-07-2006 as under:

SL. Name Status with the Educational

No Committee Qualification

01 | Al-Haj A. Z. M. Shamsul Alam Co-ordinator M A (Economics)
02 | Al-Haj Harun-ar-Rashid Khan Member MSS

03 | Dr.D.M Amanul Haque | Member MBBS, FRSH (UK)

During the year' 2006 the Audit Committee of the Board conducted 21 (twenty one) meetings in
which among others, the following issues were discussed: -

> Reviewing the inspection report of different Branches of AIBL conducted by the Banks internal
inspection team from time to time and status of compliance thereof.

> Reviewing the comprehensive inspection report of different branches of AIBL conducted by the
Bangladesh Bank and status of compliance thereof.

> Reviewing the Financial Statement for the year 2006 of the Bank.

ue 1
A Meeting of Board's Audit Committee
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SL Particulars Year Year
NO 2006 2005
1 | Paid -up Capital 854,204,000 677,939,000
2 | Total Capital 1,830,658,313 1.305,639,048
3 | Capital Surplus(Deficit) 292,170,902 340,131,346
4 | Total Assets 21,368,168,142 15,336.888,196
5 | Total Deposits 16,775,335,248 11,643,657,492
6 | Total Investment 17,423,189,761 11.474412,031
7 | Total Contingent Liabilities 5,764,655,123 3.416,787.875
8 Investment Deposit Ratio (%) 103.86% 98.54%
9 | Ratio of Classified Investment to Total investment (%) 3.27% 5.85%
10 | Profit after Tax & Provision 470,018,407 262,901,768
11 | Amount of Classified Investment during the year 569,028,117 672,211,000
12 | Provision kept againest Classified Investment 122,746,313 185,884,950
13 | Provision Surplus / (Deficit) 5,912,947 22,810,585
14 | Cost of fund (%) 9.11% 9.04%
15 | Profit earning Assets 18.449,636,538 13,308,222,022
16 | Profit Non-earning Assets 2.918,531,604 2,028.,666,174
17 | Return on Investment (ROI) - -
18 |Return on Assets After Tax (ROA) 2.19% 1.71%
19 | Income from Investment - -
20 | Earning per Share (Taka) 550.24 387.80
21 | Net Income per share (Taka) 550.24 387.80
22 | Price Earning Ratio (Times) 4.89 7.91
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Name of the firms/companies Percentage
SL Status with gt marhu s (%) of
Name Bt Proprietor, Partner, Director, holding/interest Remarks
Managing Director, Guarantor, in the concerned
Employees etc.
1 | Al-hajj Md. Anowar Hossain Chairman Managing Director :
a. M/S A. Hossain & Co. 60%
b. M/S Ashique Shipping Lines 60%
¢. M/S A.S. Trade International 50%
2 | Dr. Bahauddin Mohammad Vice- Managing Director:
Yousuf Chairman a. M/S Ayman Textile & Hosiery Ltd. 00%
b. Motmaein Sweaters Ltd. 90%
¢. Motmaein Embroidary
e 90%
d. Motmaein Printing 0%
. Motmaein Sourcing Ltd.
e. Motmaein Sourcing 60%
3 | Al-hajj A.ZM. Shamsul Alam | Director Retired Govt. personnel -
4 | Al-hajj Haroon-ar-Rashid Khan | Director
No Business exists -
5 | Al-hajj Nazmul Ahsan Khaled | Director Managing Director :
a. Moonlight Garments Ltd 25%
b. Ehsan Garments Ltd. 10%
¢. Khalid Shipping Lines Ltd. 50%
d. Engineers Enterprise Ltd. 67%
e. Nourish Poultry Hatchery Ltd. .
Director : 25%
f. M/S Mohammadi Navigation Lid. |  61.50%
6 | Al-hajj Ahmed Ali Director Owner.
a, M/S Ahmed Ali Traders 100%
7 | Al-hajj Abdul Malek Mollah Director Managing Director :
a. The Mollah Trading Ltd. 60%
8 | Al-hajj Dr. D.M. Amanul Haque | Director
No Business exists --
9 | Al-hajj Mohammad Haroon Director Owner :
a. M/S Rising Star Trading East 100%
10 | Al-hajj Badsha Meah Director Managing Director :
a. M/S Nurul Islam Electrical East 100%
I1 | Al-hajj Hafez Md. Enayetullah | Director Managing Director & Owner
a. M/S Hadyet & Brothers 100%
12 | Al-hajj Kazi Md. Mofizur Director Owner:
Rahman a. M/S Kazi Air International 100%
b. M/s Kazi Air International (Pvt.) Ltd. 5%
13 | Al-hajj Mir Ahmed Sowdagar Director M/S Haji Mir Ahmed Sowdagar 100%
14 | Al-hajj Mohammed Yahya Director Chairman :
a. M/S Koni Ltd. 25%
b. Owner : M/S Sharjil Dairy Firm. 100%
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" Name of the Directors & the entities in which they have interest as on 31 December 2006“)

Name of the firms/companies in
. which interested as Proprietor Percentage
Status with : s (%) of
SL Name ebiik Partner, Director, Managing | | olding/interest Remarks
Director Guarantor, Employees | i1 the concerned
ete.
15 | Al-hajj Badiur Rahman Director Proprietor
a. M/S Oceanlink Services 100%
b. M/S Pritasha Industries 100%
Managing Director
¢. Ocean Trade Ltd. 12%
d. Central Hospital Ltd. 2.45%
16 | Al-hajj Mohammed Director Mm‘;gxgl?iﬂ'ﬂ?r T o
a. -naramain periume L.L. )
Mahtabur Rahman Dubai. UAE p ¢
Director :
b. M/S Al-Haramain perfume Manufacturing 49%
¢. Agar-wood Processing Co. Azaman, 499,
UAE
17 | Al-hajj Abdul Moktadir Director Owner :
a. M/S Three Star Agar-wood (Pvt.) 60%
Managing Director:
b. Chokumbit Chawati, Bangkok, 60%
Thailand
¢. M/S Al-Haramain Company Ltd. 60%
Director :
d. M/S M.D. International Co. Ltd. 35%
18 | Al-hajj Kazi Abu Kauser Director Managing Director 100%
M/S High Paint Homes Ltd.
19 | Al-hajj Muhd. Fazlur Rahman| Director a. M/S Al-Haramin Perfum L.L.C
Dubai- UAE
fats : Managing Director
20 | Al-hajj Ahamedul Haque Director YOS, AH Syiicate 100%
21 | Al-hajj Abdus Samad Director Proprietor _ 100%
Samad Trading Agency
22 | Al-Hajj Engr. Kh. Director from the | Managing Director
Mesbahuddin Ahmed general share a. M/S Aqua Consultant & Association Ltd. 47%
holders group Chairman
b. M/S Knit Ware Ltd. 45%
Vice-Chairman
¢.Takaful Islami Insurance Ltd. 8%
d.Human Resources Development 5%
Co. Ltd ( HURDCO)
e. Central Hospital Ltd. 5%
23 | Al-Hajj Mohd. Seraj-ud- Director from the | Chairman & Managing Director
dowla. general share a. Mohammadi Housing Ltd. 36%
holders group b. Mohammadi Apparels Ltd. 60%
¢. Mohammadi Apartment Ltd. 50%
d. Sara Garments Ltd. 25%
¢. MWT Shipping (Pvt) Ltd. 96% g
24 | M. A. Samad sheikh Ex-Officio Nil Nil Employee
Director
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Name of the Directors and their shareholdings in the year 2006

Ending Opening
SL. Name of Directors Status position on position on Remarks
31/12/2006 01/01/2006

1.0 | Al-hajj Md. Anowar Hossain | Chairman 30497 shares of 23966 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk 30,497,000/- Tk. 2,39,66.000/-

2.0 | Dr. Bahauddin Mohd. Yousuf | Vice-Chairman 12471 shares of 9898 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each

Tk.12,471.,000/- Tk.98, 98.000/-

3.0 | Al-hajj A.Z.M. Shamsul Alam | Director 2764 shares of 2194 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each

Tk.27,64.000/- Tk.21, 94,000/-

4.0 | Al-hajj Md. Harun-ar- Director 12471 shares of 9898 shares of
Rashid Khan Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk.12.471,000/-- Tk.98, 98,000/-

5.0 | Al-hajj Ahmed Ali Director 13926 shares of 8743 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each

Tk.1.39,26,000/- Tk.87, 43,000/-

6.0 | Al-hajj Nazmul Ahsan Khaled | Director 11743 shares of 9320 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each

Tk. 1,17,43,000/- Tk. 93,20,000/-

7.0 | Al-hajj Abdul Malek Mollah | Director 12471 shares of 9898 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/~ each

Tk.1,24,71,000/- Tk.98, 98,000/-

8.0 | Al-hajj Dr. D.M. Director 12397 shares of 9839 shares of
Amanul Haque Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk.1.,23.97 000/- Tk.98, 39,0000/-

9.0 | Al-hajj Mohammed Haroon | Director 21101 shares of 16747 shares of
Tk. 1.000/- each Tk. 1.000/- each

Tk. 2,11,01.000/- | Tk. 1,67.47,000/-

10.0| Al-Hajj Badsha Meah Director 21101 shares of 16747 shares of
Tk. 1.000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk. 2,11,01,000/- Tk. 1,67,47,000/-

11.0| Al-hajj Hafez Director 18190 shares of 14437 shares of
Md. Enayetullah Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk. 1,81,90,000/- | Tk. 1,44, 37,000/-

12.0| Al-hajj Kazi Md. Mofizur Director 18190 shares of 14437 shares of
Rahman Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each

Tk. 1,81,90.000/- | Tk. 1.44,37,000/-
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Name of the Directors and their shareholdings in the year 2006

Ending position Opening
SL Name of Directors Status on 31/12/2006 position on Remarks
01/01/2006
s 18190 shares of 14437 shares of
Al-hajj Mir Ahmed Sowdagar Director Tk. 1.000/- each | Tk. 1,000/~ each
Tk. 1,81.90.000/- | Tk. 1,44 37.000/-
14 | Al-hajj Mohammed Yahya Director 18190 shares of 14437 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk. 1,81,90,000/- | Tk. 1,44,37.000/-
15 | Al-hajj Badiur Rahman Dhrecior 19645 shares of 15592 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk1,96.45.000/- | Tk. 1,55.92,000/-
16 | Al-Hajj Mohammed Mahtabur Directot 23676 shares of 18791 shares of
Rahman Tk. 1,000/- each | Tk. 1.000/- each
Tk. 2,36,76,000/- | Tk. 1.87,91.000/-
17 Al-Hajj Abdul Moktadir Director 8440 shares of 6699 shares of
Tk. 1.000/- each Tk. 1.000/- each
Tk. 84.,40,000/- Tk. 66,99.000/-
18 Al-hajj Kazi Abu Kauser Director 19645 shares of 15592 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk1,96,45,000/- | Tk. 1,55,92,000/-
19 | Al-Haj Md. Fazlur Rahman Director 1236 shares of 981 shares of
Tk. 1.000/- each Tk. 1.000/- each
Tk. 12.36,000/- Tk. 9.81,000/-
20 | Al-hajj Ahamedul Hoque Director 16735 shares of 13282 shares of
Tk. 1,000/~ each Tk. 1,000/- each
Tk. 1,67,35,000/- | Tk. 1,32,82,000/-
31 Al-Hajj Abdus Samad TyiEEtar 19841 shares of 15747 shares of
Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1.000/- each
Tk. 1,98,41,000/- | Tk. 1,57,47,000/-
22 | Al-hajj Kh. Mesbahuddin Director from the| 16374 shares of 12996 shares of
Ahmed general share Tk. 1,000/- each Tk. 1.000/- each
holders group | Tk, 1,63,74.000/- | Tk. 1,2¢,96,000/-
23 | Al-hajj Md. Siraj -ud-Dowla | Director from the| 6869 shares of 5452 shares of
general share | Tk 1,000/- each | Tk.1.000/- each
holders group | Ty 68 69,000/~ | Tk. 54,52,000/-
24 M. A. Samad sheikh Ex-Officio Nil Nil No need to
Managing Director Director hold any shiore
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Status of compliance of corporate Governance

 Compliance Report on SEC Notification

Status of compliance with the condition imposed by the commission’s notification no.sec/cred/2006 158/admin/
02-08 dated 20th February 2006 issued under section 2cc of the securities and exchange ordinance, 1969.

Condition _ Compliance status (put in Explal.nation f?" non-
5% Title the appropriate column) camphanc.e ‘wuh the
Yes No condition
11 Board's size v Under process
. 261) Number of independent director Under process
1.2(i1) Appointment of independent director Under process
) Chairman of the Board and CEO v
1.4(a) FS presents fairly its state of affairs,
result of its operation, cash flows & ¥
changes in equity.
1.4(b) Proper books and accounts -
maintained
1.4(c) Appropriate accounting policies
consistently applied in FS preparation 7
and accounting estimates are based
on reasonable & prudent judgment
1.4(d) International accounting standards as
applicable in Bangladesh followed in o
financial statements preparation & any
departure adequately disclosed.
1.4(e) The system of internal control is found
in design and effectively implemented ¥
and monitored
1.4(f) No significant doubt upon its ability to =
continue as a going concern
1.4(g) Significant deviation from last year in 7
operating result.
1.4(h) Key operating and financial data of at v Sh g
least preceding three years e e
1.4(1) If the company has not declared v The company has
dividend declared dividend
1.4G) | Number of Board meeting v 1 Mook ian
average 80% presence
1.4(k) Pattern of shareholding v Shown in annual report
2.1 Appointment of CFO, Head of "
Internal audit & company secretary.
2.2 Requirement to attend Board meeting v

@
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Compliance Report on SEC notification

)

Compliance status (put in

Explanation for non-

Condition Title the appropriate column) compliance with the
- Yes No condition

3.1 Constitution of Audit committee v

3.131) Number of member of Audit 7
committee

3.1(ii) Inclusion of independent director in Iy, Under process
the audit committee

3.1(iii) Fill in the casual vacancy in audit ¥
committee

3.2(1) Selection of the Chairman of audit v
committee

3.2(i1) Qualification of the chairman of 2
audit committee

3.3.1(1) Report by the audit committee on its ~
activities to the board of directors

3.3.1(ii) Report to the board by the audit 7
committee on:

3.3.1(ii)(a) Conflicts on interests

3.3.1Gi)(b) Suspected or presumed fraud or
irregularities or material defect in the v
internal control system.

3.3.1(ii)c) Suspected infringement of laws v

3.3.1(1i)(d) Any other matter v

3.3.2 Reporting to the regulators by the 7
audit committee

3.4 Reporting to the shareholders and
general investors ;

4.00 Statutory auditors not engaged in:

4.00(i) Appraisal or valuation services or
fairness opinions.

4.00(i1) Financial information system design | =
and implementation

4.00(iii) Book-keeping or other services
related to the accounting records or v
financial statement

4.00(iv) Broker dealer services v

4.00(v) Actuarial services v

4.00(vi) Internal audit services ¥

4.00(vii) Any other services that the audit .

committee determines.
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Fq AL-ARAFAH ISLAMI BANK LIMITED
oy 36 Dilkusha C/A., Dhaka-1000

(PROXY FORM)
Folio No. No. of Share
. = 1 .
BOACNo{ | | | [ [[[TTT]TTTT]
AT R S being shareholder(s) of Al-Arafah Islami Bank Limited do hereby
SOBRL VILIVITS. i ooy, SNBSS . (o] FORDRPRODORRRSNOOBNORRROOPOR R =

....................................................................................................... as my/our proxy, to attend and vote on my/our
behalf at the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 13 May 2007, Sunday, 10.00 AM at
Trust Milonayton, 545 Puratan Biman Bandar Sarak, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this in my/our presence on.................. dayiof e 2007

Revenue
Stamp

Signatare of Proxy.. e o

=ale Ha, Signature of Shareholder(s)

BOACNe. [ [ [ [ [ [[[TTTTTT[T]

N.B.

I. This form of proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at least 48 hours before the meeting at the
Company's Share Department, 36 Dilkusha, C/A, Dhaka-1000, proxy will be invalid if not signed and stamped
as shown above.

2. Signature of the shareholder should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Company.

G R e R g T Oy T YT Y T T T L T g e = S e S

Q AL-ARAFAH ISLAMI BANK LIMITED
=y (ATTENDANCE SLIP)

I do hereby record my attendance of the 12th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 13 May 2007,
Sunday, 10.00 AM at Trust Milonayton, 545 Puratan Biman Bandar Sarak, Dhaka Cantonment, Dhaka .

Name of the ShareholdetlProxy.........ccccvvmmii il L L it isssasaannis

Folio No. : Signature of Shareholder...................
No. of Share: L1 e e S
BoaCNo. | [ | [ [[[TJTTITTTT]

N.B. Sharcholders attending the meeting in person or by proxy are requested to complete the
attendance slip and deposit the same at the entrance of the meeting hall. Seats in the auditorium are
reserved only for the share holders/proxies.
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